SPECIAL COMMISSION MEETING
Tuesday, April 13, 2021, at 8:00 am
338 West First Street, Port Angeles, WA 98362
AGENDA

On March 24, 2020 a new Governor’s proclamation went into effect regarding public meetings. By order of
Washington State Governor Jay Inslee, Proclamation 20-28.15, the Regular Commission Meeting will be available
to the public by conference or video call.

I.

CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

II.

EARLY PUBLIC COMMENT SESSION (TOTAL SESSION UP TO 20 MINUTES)

III.

WORK SESSION

IV.

V.

A.

Exit Interview with Auditor *Time Specific at 9:00 am.....................................1-42

B.

Executive Director Recruitment Update

C.

2020 Capital Projects Report........................................................................43-46

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
A.

Regular Commission Meeting Minutes – March 23, 2021.............................47-49

B.

Special Commission Meeting Minutes – March 25, 2021..................................50

C.

Special Commission Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2021.......................................51

D.

Special Commission Meeting Minutes – April 8, 2021.......................................52

E.

Vouchers in the amount of $759,054.02............................................................53

COMPLETION OF RECORDS
A.

VI.

PLANNING AND CAPITAL PROJECTS
A.

VII.

Monthly Delegation of Authority Report........................................................54-62

Boat Haven Fuel Float - Moffatt & Nichol Agreement Amendment 01..........63-64

LOG YARD
No items

VIII.

MARINE TRADES AND MARINE TERMINALS
No items

IX.

PROPERTY
A.

X.

Insitu Ecosystems Lease Amendment..........................................................65-68

MARINAS

No items
XI.

AIRPORTS
A.

XII.

Century West Engineering Contract Approval for Final Runway Design.......69-84

OTHER BUSINESS
A.

Part Time Benefits Policy..............................................................................85-92

B.

2020 Bad Debt Review...................................................................................93-94

XIII.

COMMISSIONER REPORTS

XIV.

PUBLIC COMMENT SESSION (TOTAL SESSION UP TO 20 MINUTES)

XV.

FUTURE AGENDA.........................................................................................................95

XVI.

NEXT MEETINGS
A.

April 26, 2021 – Special Joint Commission Meeting with the County

B.

April 27, 2021 – Regular Commission Meeting

C.

May 11, 2021 – Regular Commission Meeting

XVII. UPCOMING EVENTS
XVIII. BROWN BAG LUNCH AND OPEN DISCUSSION WITH THE COMMISSION (TIME
PERMITTING)
XIX. EXECUTIVE SESSION
The Board may recess into Executive Session for those purposes authorized under Chapter
42.30 RCW, The Open Public Meetings Act.
XX.

ADJOURN

RULES FOR ATTENDING COMMISSION MEETING
•
•
•

Signs, placards, and noise making devices including musical instruments are
prohibited.
Disruptive behavior by audience members is inappropriate and may result in
removal.
Loud comments, clapping, and booing may be considered disruptive and result in
removal at the discretion of the Chair.
RULES FOR SPEAKING AT A COMMISSION MEETING

•
•
•
•
•
•

Members of the public wishing to address the Board on general items may do so
during the designated times on the agenda or when recognized by the Chair.
Time allotted to each speaker is determined by the Chair and, in general, is
limited to 3 minutes.
Total time planned for each public comment period is 20 minutes, subject to
change by the Chair.
All comments should be made from the speaker’s rostrum and any individual
making comments shall first state their name and address for the official record.
Speakers should not comment more than once per meeting unless their
comments pertain to a new topic they have not previously spoken about.
In the event of a contentious topic with multiple speakers, the Chair will attempt
to provide equal time for both sides.

Exit Conference: Port of Port Angeles and Industrial Development Corporation
(IDC) of the Port of Port Angeles
The Office of the Washington State Auditor’s vision is increased trust in government. Our mission is to provide
citizens with independent and transparent examinations of how state and local governments use public funds, and
develop strategies that make government more efficient and effective.
The purpose of this meeting is to share the results of your audit and our draft reporting. We value and appreciate
your participation.

Audit Reports
We will publish the following reports:





Accountability audit for January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019 - see draft report.
Financial statement audit for January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2019 – see draft report.
Passenger Facility Charges audit for January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019 – see draft report.
Assessment audit for IDC of the Port of Port Angeles for January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019 –
see draft report.

Audit Highlights
Jennifer Baker and all the staff at the Port of Port Angeles were a delight to work with! We appreciate the Port’s
timely response to our audit requests throughout the audit process. We also appreciate the Port’s continued efforts
in ensuring internal controls over the safeguarding of assets and compliance with state requirements, as well as
its own policies, are adequate and functioning properly.

Recommendations not included in the Audit Reports
None

Communications required by audit standards
In relation to our financial statement audit report, we would like to bring to your attention:


There were no uncorrected misstatements in the audited financial statements.
1
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There were no material misstatements in the financial statements corrected by management during the
audit.

Finalizing Your Audit
Report Publication
Audit reports are published on our website and distributed via e-mail in an electronic .pdf file. We also offer a
subscription service that allows you to be notified by email when audit reports are released or posted to our
website. You can sign up for this convenient service at: https://portal.sao.wa.gov/SAOPortal/
Management Representation Letter
We have included a copy of representations requested of management for both the Financial and Accountability
audit and the audit of the Port’s Passenger Facility Charges.
Audit Cost
At the entrance conference, we estimated the cost of the audit to be $41,500 and actual audit costs will
approximate that amount.
Your Next Scheduled Audit
Your next audit is scheduled to be conducted in fall of 2021 and will cover the following general areas for FYE
2020:





Accountability for Public Resources
Financial Statements
Passenger Facility Charges
Assessment Audit of the IDC of the Port of Port Angeles

The estimated cost for the next audit based on current rates is $42,700 plus travel expenses. This preliminary
estimate is provided as a budgeting tool and not a guarantee of final cost.
If expenditures of federal awards are $750,000 or more in any fiscal year, notify our Office so we can schedule
your audit to meet federal single audit requirements. Federal awards can include grants, loans, and non-cash
assistance such as equipment and supplies.

Working Together to Improve Government
Audit Survey
When your report is released you will receive an audit survey from us. We value your opinions on our audit
services and hope you provide feedback.
Local Government Support Team
This team provides support services to local governments through technical assistance, comparative statistics,
training, and tools to help prevent and detect a loss of public funds. Our website and client portal offers many
2
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resources, including a client Help Desk that answers auditing and accounting questions. Additionally this team
assists with the online filing of your financial statements.
The Center for Government Innovation
The Center for Government Innovation of the Office of the Washington State Auditor is designed to offer services
specifically to help you help the residents you serve at no additional cost to your government. What does this
mean? We provide expert advice in areas like Lean, peer-to-peer networking and culture-building to help local
governments find ways to be more efficient, effective and transparent. The Center can help you by providing
assistance in financial management, cybersecurity and more. Check out our best practices and other resources
that help local governments act on accounting standard changes, comply with regulations, and respond to
recommendations in your audit. The Center understands that time is your most precious commodity as a public
servant, and we are here to help you do more with the limited hours you have. If you are interested in learning
how we can help you maximize your effect in government, call us at (564) 999-0818 or email us at
Center@sao.wa.gov.

Questions?
Please contact us with any questions about information in this document or related audit reports.
Megan McFarlane, Assistant Audit Manager, (360) 790-6275, Megan.McFarlane@sao.wa.gov
Carol Ehlinger, MEd, Program Manager, (360) 790-6848, Carol.Ehlinger@sao.wa.gov
Tina Watkins, CPA, Assistant Director of Local Audit, (360) 260-6411, Tina.Watkins@sao.wa.gov
Kelly Collins, CPA, Director of Local Audit, (564) 999-0807, Kelly.Collins@sao.wa.gov

3
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Accountability Audit Report

Port of Port Angeles
For the period January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019

Published (Inserted by OS)

Find out what’s new at SAO
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Office of the Washington State Auditor
Pat McCarthy
Issue Date – (Inserted by OS)

Board of Commissioners
Port of Port Angeles
Port Angeles, Washington

Report on Accountability
Thank you for the opportunity to work with you to promote accountability, integrity and openness
in government. The Office of the Washington State Auditor takes seriously our role of providing
state and local governments with assurance and accountability as the independent auditor of public
accounts. In this way, we strive to help government work better, cost less, deliver higher value and
earn greater public trust.
Independent audits provide essential accountability and transparency for Port operations. This
information is valuable to management, the governing body and public stakeholders when
assessing the government’s stewardship of public resources.
Attached is our independent audit report on the Port’s compliance with applicable requirements
and safeguarding of public resources for the areas we examined. We appreciate the opportunity to
work with your staff and value your cooperation during the audit.
Sincerely,

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA
Americans with Disabilities
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, we will make this document available in
alternative formats. For more information, please contact our Office at (564) 999-0950, TDD
Relay at (800) 833-6388, or email our webmaster at webmaster@sao.wa.gov.

Insurance Building, P.O. Box 40021  Olympia, Washington 98504-0021  (564) 999-0950  Pat.McCarthy@sao.wa.gov
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AUDIT RESULTS
Results in brief
This report describes the overall results and conclusions for the areas we examined. In those
selected areas, Port operations complied, in all material respects, with applicable state laws,
regulations, and its own policies, and provided adequate controls over the safeguarding of public
resources.
In keeping with general auditing practices, we do not examine every transaction, activity, policy,
internal control, or area. As a result, no information is provided on the areas that were not
examined.

About the audit
This report contains the results of our independent accountability audit of the Port of Port Angeles
from January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019.
Management is responsible for ensuring compliance and adequate safeguarding of public resources
from fraud, loss or abuse. This includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
controls relevant to these objectives.
This audit was conducted under the authority of RCW 43.09.260, which requires the Office of the
Washington State Auditor to examine the financial affairs of all local governments. Our audit
involved obtaining evidence about the Port’s use of public resources, compliance with state laws
and regulations and its own policies and procedures, and internal controls over such matters. The
procedures performed were based on our assessment of risks in the areas we examined.
Based on our risk assessment for the year ended December 31, 2019, the areas examined were
those representing the highest risk of fraud, loss, abuse, or noncompliance. We examined the
following areas during this audit period:


Tenant leases – compliance with contract terms



Accounts payable – credit cards



Payroll – gross wages and overtime

Office of the Washington State Auditor
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RELATED REPORTS
Financial
Our opinion on the Port’s financial statements is provided in a separate report, which includes the
Port’s
financial
statements.
That
report
is
available
on
our
website,
http://portal.sao.wa.gov/ReportSearch.

Passenger facility charge program
We evaluated internal controls and tested compliance with the requirements, as applicable, for the
Port’s passenger facility charge program, and reported the results in a separate passenger facility
charge program audit report. That report is available on our website,
http://portal.sao.wa.gov/ReportSearch.
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE PORT
The Port of Port Angeles is a small classified port district located in Clallam County. The Port
provides an array of services including marine terminals, log yard, marinas, airports, industrial
parks and rental properties.
An elected, three-member Board of Port Commissioners governs the Port. The Board appoints an
Executive Director to manage the Port’s daily operations and the staff of approximately 60
employees. The Port had operating expenses of approximately $10.3 million in 2019.

Contact information related to this report

Address:

Port of Port Angeles
P.O. Box 1350
Port Angeles, WA 98362

Contact:

Jennifer Baker, Manager of Finance and Accounting

Telephone:
Website:

(360) 457-8527
www.portofpa.com

Information current as of report publish date.

Audit history
You can find current and past audit reports for the Port of Port Angeles at
http://portal.sao.wa.gov/ReportSearch.

Office of the Washington State Auditor
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ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE
The State Auditor’s Office is established in the Washington State Constitution and is part of the
executive branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the people of Washington
and serves four-year terms.
We work with state agencies, local governments and the public to achieve our vision of increasing
trust in government by helping governments work better and deliver higher value.
In fulfilling our mission to provide citizens with independent and transparent examinations of how
state and local governments use public funds, we hold ourselves to those same standards by
continually improving our audit quality and operational efficiency, and by developing highly
engaged and committed employees.
As an agency, the State Auditor’s Office has the independence necessary to objectively perform
audits, attestation engagements and investigations. Our work is designed to comply with
professional standards as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state and local laws. The
Office also has an extensive quality control program and undergoes regular external peer review
to ensure our work meets the highest possible standards of accuracy, objectivity and clarity.
Our audits look at financial information and compliance with federal, state and local laws for all
local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of higher
education. In addition, we conduct performance audits and cybersecurity audits of state agencies
and local governments, as well as state whistleblower, fraud and citizen hotline investigations.
The results of our work are available to everyone through the more than 2,000 reports we publish
each year on our website, www.sao.wa.gov. Additionally, we share regular news and other
information via an email subscription service and social media channels.
We take our role as partners in accountability seriously. The Office provides training and technical
assistance to governments both directly and through partnerships with other governmental support
organizations.

Stay connected at sao.wa.gov







Other ways to stay in touch

Find your audit team
Request public records
Search BARS manuals (GAAP and
cash), and find reporting templates
Learn about our training workshops
and on-demand videos
Discover which governments serve you
— enter an address on our map
Explore public financial data
with the Financial Intelligence Tool

Office of the Washington State Auditor
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Main telephone:
(564) 999-0950



Toll-free Citizen Hotline:
(866) 902-3900



Email:
webmaster@sao.wa.gov
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Financial Statements Audit Report
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For the period January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2019
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Office of the Washington State Auditor
Pat McCarthy
Issue Date – (Inserted by OS)
Board of Commissioners
Port of Port Angeles
Port Angeles, Washington

Report on Financial Statements
Please find attached our report on the Port of Port Angeles financial statements.
We are issuing this report in order to provide information on the Port’s financial condition.
Sincerely,

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

Americans with Disabilities
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, we will make this document available in
alternative formats. For more information, please contact our Office at (564) 999-0950, TDD
Relay at (800) 833-6388, or email our webmaster at webmaster@sao.wa.gov.
Insurance Building, P.O. Box 40021  Olympia, Washington 98504-0021  (564) 999-0950  Pat.McCarthy@sao.wa.gov
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards
Port of Port Angeles
January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2019

Board of Commissioners
Port of Port Angeles
Port Angeles, Washington
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Port of Port Angeles, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Port’s basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated April 13, 2021.
As discussed in Note 17 to the financial statements, the full extent of the COVID-19 pandemic’s
direct or indirect financial impact on the Port is unknown.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements, we considered the Port’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s
internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Port’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of

Office of the Washington State Auditor
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deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Port’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of the Port’s compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Port’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Port’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However, this
report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It also serves to disseminate
information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess government operations.

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

April 13, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the Financial Statements
Port of Port Angeles
January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2019

Board of Commissioners
Port of Port Angeles
Port Angeles, Washington

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Port of Port Angeles, as of and for
the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Port’s basic financial statements as listed on page 9.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
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relevant to the Port’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Port of Port Angeles, as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the
changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Matters of Emphasis
As discussed in Note 17 to the financial statements, the full extent of the COVID-19 pandemic’s
direct or indirect financial impact on the Port is unknown. Our opinion is not modified with respect
to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information listed on page 9
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Office of the Washington State Auditor
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OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 13,
2021 on our consideration of the Port’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Port’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

April 13, 2021
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FINANCIAL SECTION
Port of Port Angeles
January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2019

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis – 2019 and 2018

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Net Position – 2019 and 2018
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – 2019 and 2018
Statement of Cash Flows – 2019 and 2018
Notes to Financial Statements – 2019 and 2018

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Employer Contributions – PERS 1, PERS 2/3 – 2019 and 2018
Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability – PERS 1, PERS 2/3 – 2019
and 2018
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios – Public Employees
Benefit Board – 2019 and 2018
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Passenger Facility Charges Audit Report

Port of Port Angeles
For the period January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019
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Office of the Washington State Auditor
Pat McCarthy
Issue Date – (Issued by OS)
Board of Commissioners
Port of Port Angeles
Port Angeles, Washington

Report on Passenger Facility Charges
Please find attached our report on the Port of Port Angeles compliance with requirements
applicable to its passenger facility charge program.
In addition to this work, we look at other areas of our audit client’s financial condition and
operations for compliance with state laws and regulations. The results of those audits will be
included in separately issued accountability and financial statement reports.
Sincerely,

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

Americans with Disabilities
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, we will make this document available in
alternative formats. For more information, please contact our Office at (564) 999-0950, TDD
Relay at (800) 833-6388, or email our webmaster at webmaster@sao.wa.gov.

Insurance Building, P.O. Box 40021  Olympia, Washington 98504-0021  (564) 999-0950  Pat.McCarthy@sao.wa.gov
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to the Passenger Facility
Charge Program and on Internal Control over Compliance
Port of Port Angeles
January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019

Board of Commissioners
Port of Port Angeles
Port Angeles, Washington

COMPLIANCE FOR PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES
We have audited the compliance of the Port of Port Angeles, with the compliance requirements
described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies (Guide) issued by the
Federal Aviation Administration for its passenger facility charge program for the year ended
December 31, 2019.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations
applicable to its passenger facility charge program.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Port’s compliance based on our audit. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Guide. Those
standards and the Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on the passenger facility charge program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Port’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide
a legal determination of the Port’s compliance with those requirements.
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Opinion on Compliance
In our opinion, the Port of Port Angeles complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to its passenger facility charge program for the year ended
December 31, 2019.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
Management of the Port is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws and regulations applicable to its passenger facility
charge program. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Port’s internal control
over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger
facility charge program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Guide, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of the passenger facility charge program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the passenger facility charge program
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of the passenger facility charge
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the

Office of the Washington State Auditor

sao.wa.gov

Page 24 of 42

24

requirements of the Guide. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. However,
this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It also serves to
disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess government
operations.

SCHEDULE OF PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES
We have audited the financial statements of the Port of Port Angeles, as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the Port’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 13, 2021,
which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was performed
for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Port’s basic financial statements as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Passenger Facility
Charges Collected, Held and Used is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
the Guide and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 13,
2021 on our consideration of the Port’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
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part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Port’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

April 13, 2021
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FINANCIAL SECTION
Port of Port Angeles
January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges Collected, Held and Used and Notes – 2019
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ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE
The State Auditor’s Office is established in the Washington State Constitution and is part of the
executive branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the people of Washington
and serves four-year terms.
We work with state agencies, local governments and the public to achieve our vision of increasing
trust in government by helping governments work better and deliver higher value.
In fulfilling our mission to provide citizens with independent and transparent examinations of how
state and local governments use public funds, we hold ourselves to those same standards by
continually improving our audit quality and operational efficiency, and by developing highly
engaged and committed employees.
As an agency, the State Auditor’s Office has the independence necessary to objectively perform
audits, attestation engagements and investigations. Our work is designed to comply with
professional standards as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state and local laws. The
Office also has an extensive quality control program and undergoes regular external peer review
to ensure our work meets the highest possible standards of accuracy, objectivity and clarity.
Our audits look at financial information and compliance with federal, state and local laws for all
local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of higher
education. In addition, we conduct performance audits and cybersecurity audits of state agencies
and local governments, as well as state whistleblower, fraud and citizen hotline investigations.
The results of our work are available to everyone through the more than 2,000 reports we publish
each year on our website, www.sao.wa.gov. Additionally, we share regular news and other
information via an email subscription service and social media channels.
We take our role as partners in accountability seriously. The Office provides training and technical
assistance to governments both directly and through partnerships with other governmental support
organizations.

Stay connected at sao.wa.gov







Other ways to stay in touch

Find your audit team
Request public records
Search BARS manuals (GAAP and
cash), and find reporting templates
Learn about our training workshops
and on-demand videos
Discover which governments serve you
— enter an address on our map
Explore public financial data
with the Financial Intelligence Tool
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Main telephone:
(564) 999-0950



Toll-free Citizen Hotline:
(866) 902-3900



Email:
webmaster@sao.wa.gov
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Office of the Washington State Auditor
Pat McCarthy
Issue Date – (Inserted by OS)

Board of Commissioners
Industrial Development Corporation of the Port of Port Angeles
Port Angeles, Washington

Report on Assessment Audit
Thank you for the opportunity to work with you to promote accountability, integrity and openness
in government. The Office of the Washington State Auditor takes seriously our role of providing
state and local governments with assurance and accountability as the independent auditor of public
accounts. In this way, we strive to help government work better, cost less, deliver higher value and
earn greater public trust.
The attached report describes the procedures performed and conclusions for the areas we reviewed.
We appreciate the opportunity to work with your staff, and value your cooperation during the
assessment audit.
Sincerely,

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

Americans with Disabilities
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, we will make this document available in
alternative formats. For more information, please contact our Office at (564) 999-0950, TDD
Relay at (800) 833-6388, or email our webmaster at webmaster@sao.wa.gov.

Insurance Building, P.O. Box 40021  Olympia, Washington 98504-0021  (564) 999-0950  Pat.McCarthy@sao.wa.gov
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AUDIT SUMMARY
Results in brief
Based on the procedures performed, nothing came to our attention in the areas we reviewed that
caused us to believe the Corporation was not in substantial compliance with applicable state laws,
regulations, and its own policies, or had significant weaknesses in controls over the safeguarding
of public resources. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to
our attention that would have been reported.

About the assessment audit
This report contains the results of our independent audit of the Industrial Development Corporation
of the Port of Port Angeles from January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019.
Management is responsible for ensuring compliance and adequate safeguarding of public resources
from fraud, loss or abuse. This includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
controls relevant to these objectives. State law (RCW 43.09.230) also requires local governments
to prepare and submit certified annual reports to our Office summarizing such things as revenues
received, collections made, amounts receivable or payable, expenditures made, and debt owed.
This assessment audit was conducted under the authority of RCW 43.09.260, which requires the
Office of the Washington State Auditor to examine the financial affairs of all local governments
at least once every three years. Assessment audits are risk-based, limited-scope reviews of small
local governments, generally defined as local governments with less than $300,000 in annual
revenues. To help minimize audit costs, our work for this engagement was conducted off-site
primarily using financial and other information provided by the Corporation.
This assessment audit was limited to the following:


Reviewing meeting minutes for compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act.



Verifying that annual reports submitted to our Office were complete and filed timely in
compliance with state law.



Corroborating financial information reported by the Corporation by comparing it to thirdparty sources.

Office of the Washington State Auditor
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE CORPORATION
In 1982 the Industrial Development Corporation (IDC) of the Port of Port Angeles was formed.
The IDC is a separate municipal corporation which has the authority, under RCW 39.84 and IRS
103(b), to issue nonrecourse revenue bonds on behalf of private companies. Such bonds are
restricted to financing industrial development anywhere (Port or non-Port property) within the port
district. These bonds are referred to as Industrial Revenue Bonds (IRB’s). They allow a private
company to obtain tax-exempt financing, which carries a lower interest rate.
Revenue bonds issued through the IDC are payable solely by the private company developing
industrial facilities. The bonds are neither a liability nor a contingent liability of the IDC or the
Port of Port Angeles.
Bonds issued by the IDC must be approved by the Washington state tax exempt bond cap program
which regulates total tax exempt bond issuances within the state.
The IDC board is composed of the three current Port commissioners; the board operates under a
separate set of bylaws. The IDC has no employees; all IDC work is performed by Port staff under
a reimbursement agreement between the Port and the IDC.
The only sources of IDC revenue are bond issuance fees received when IDC bonds are actually
issued. These fees, normally a few thousand dollars, are then transferred to Port accounts to
reimburse the Port for time spent by Port staff on IDC issues.

Contact information related to this report

Address:

Industrial Development Corporation of the Port of Port Angeles
P.O. Box 1350
Port Angeles, WA 98362

Contact:

Jennifer Baker, Manager of Finance and Accounting

Telephone:
Website:

(360) 417-3362
www.portofpa.com

Information current as of report publish date.

Audit history
You can find current and past audit reports for the Industrial Development Corporation of the Port
of Port Angeles at http://portal.sao.wa.gov/ReportSearch.
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ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE
The State Auditor’s Office is established in the Washington State Constitution and is part of the
executive branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the people of Washington
and serves four-year terms.
We work with state agencies, local governments and the public to achieve our vision of increasing
trust in government by helping governments work better and deliver higher value.
In fulfilling our mission to provide citizens with independent and transparent examinations of how
state and local governments use public funds, we hold ourselves to those same standards by
continually improving our audit quality and operational efficiency, and by developing highly
engaged and committed employees.
As an agency, the State Auditor’s Office has the independence necessary to objectively perform
audits, attestation engagements and investigations. Our work is designed to comply with
professional standards as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state and local laws. The
Office also has an extensive quality control program and undergoes regular external peer review
to ensure our work meets the highest possible standards of accuracy, objectivity and clarity.
Our audits look at financial information and compliance with federal, state and local laws for all
local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of higher
education. In addition, we conduct performance audits and cybersecurity audits of state agencies
and local governments, as well as state whistleblower, fraud and citizen hotline investigations.
The results of our work are available to everyone through the more than 2,000 reports we publish
each year on our website, www.sao.wa.gov. Additionally, we share regular news and other
information via an email subscription service and social media channels.
We take our role as partners in accountability seriously. The Office provides training and technical
assistance to governments both directly and through partnerships with other governmental support
organizations.

Stay connected at sao.wa.gov







Other ways to stay in touch

Find your audit team
Request public records
Search BARS manuals (GAAP and
cash), and find reporting templates
Learn about our training workshops
and on-demand videos
Discover which governments serve you
— enter an address on our map
Explore public financial data
with the Financial Intelligence Tool
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Main telephone:
(564) 999-0950



Toll-free Citizen Hotline:
(866) 902-3900



Email:
webmaster@sao.wa.gov
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LETTER OF REPRESENTATION TO BE TYPED ON CLIENT LETTERHEAD
(USE THIS TEMPLATE FOR GAAP AUDITS)

April 13, 2021
Megan McFarlane
Washington State Auditor’s Office
451 SW Sedgwick Rd, Ste 200
Port Orchard, WA 98367
To the Office of the Washington State Auditor:
We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the Port of Port Angeles for the period
from January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019. Representations are in relation to matters
existing during or subsequent to the audit period up to the date of this letter.
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are significant
or material. Information is considered significant or material if it is probable that it would change
or influence the judgment of a reasonable person.
We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made appropriate inquires to be able
to provide our representations, the following representations made to you during your audit. If we
subsequently discover information that would change our representations related to this period, we
will notify you in a timely manner.

General Representations:
1.

We have provided you with unrestricted access to people you wished to speak with and
made available requested and relevant information of which we are aware, including:
a. Financial records and related data.
b. Minutes of the meetings of the governing body or summaries of actions of recent
meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.
c. Other internal or external audits, examinations, investigations or studies that might
concern the objectives of the audit and the corrective action taken to address significant
findings and recommendations.
d. Communications from regulatory agencies, government representatives or others
concerning possible material noncompliance, deficiencies in internal control or other
matters that might concern the objectives of the audit.
e. Related party relationships and transactions.
f. Results of our internal assessment of business risks and risks related to financial
reporting, compliance and fraud.

2.

We acknowledge our responsibility for compliance with requirements related to
confidentiality of certain information, and have notified you whenever records or data
containing information subject to any confidentiality requirements were made available.
35
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3.

We acknowledge our responsibility for compliance with applicable laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements.

4.

We have identified and disclosed all laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements that
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts,
including legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

5.

We have complied with all material aspects of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements.

6.

We acknowledge our responsibility for establishing and maintaining effective internal
controls over compliance with applicable laws and regulations and safeguarding of public
resources, including controls to prevent and detect fraud.

7.

We have established adequate procedures and controls to provide reasonable assurance of
safeguarding public resources and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

8.

We have no knowledge of any loss of public funds or assets or other illegal activity, or any
allegations of fraud or suspected fraud involving management or employees.

9.

In accordance with RCW 43.09.200, all transactions have been properly recorded in the
financial records.

Additional representations related to the financial statements:
10.

We acknowledge our responsibility for fair presentation of financial statements and believe
financial statements are fairly presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America.

11.

We acknowledge our responsibility for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting.

12.

The financial statements include financial information of the primary government and all
component units, fiduciary and other activity required by generally accepted accounting
principles to be included in the financial reporting entity.

13.

The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities.

14.

All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB requirements or are otherwise
particularly important to financial statement users, are presented as major funds.

15.

Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized,
reported and depreciated as applicable.

16.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the reported value or
classification of assets, liabilities or net position.
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17.

Revenues are appropriately classified by fund and account.

18.

Expenses have been appropriately classified by fund and account, and allocations have
been made on a reasonable basis.

19.

Net position components (net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted) are
properly classified and, as applicable, approved.

20.

Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates are reasonable.

21.

The following have been properly classified, reported and disclosed in the financial
statements, as applicable:
a. Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances.
b. Related-party transactions, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers, leasing
arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related
parties.
c. Joint ventures and other related organizations.
d. Guarantees under which the government is contingently liable.
e. All events occurring subsequent to the fiscal year end through the date of this letter that
would require adjustment to, or disclosure in, the financial statements.
f. Effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, assessments, violations of
laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements, and other loss contingencies.

22.

We have accurately disclosed to you all known actual or possible pending or threatened
litigation, claims or assessments whose effects should be considered when preparing the
financial statements. We have also accurately disclosed to you the nature and extent of our
consultation with outside attorneys concerning litigation, claims and assessments.

23.

We acknowledge our responsibility for reporting supplementary information (Schedule of
Passenger Facility Charges) in accordance with applicable requirements and believe
supplementary information is fairly presented, in both form and content in accordance with
those requirements.

24.

We have disclosed to you all significant changes to the methods of measurement and
presentation of supplementary information, reasons for any changes and all significant
assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation.

25.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the supplementary information required by
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (RSI) and believe RSI is
measured and presented within prescribed guidelines.

26.

We have disclosed to you all significant changes in the methods of measurement and
presentation of RSI, reasons for any changes and all significant assumptions or
interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the RSI.
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27.

We believe there are no uncorrected misstatements that would be material individually and
in the aggregate to each applicable opinion unit.

28.

We acknowledge our responsibility not to publish any document containing the audit report
with any change in the financial statements, supplementary and other information
referenced in the auditor’s report. We will contact the auditor if we have any needs for
publishing the audit report with different content included.

(Signature)
[Name and Title]

(Signature)
[Name and Title]

(Executive Officer ⑧)

(Finance Officer ⑧)

38
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NOTES TO THE PREPARER
①

The date of the letter should match the date of the reports issued by the auditor. This date
should be obtained from the auditor.
The period covered by the representation letter must be the same as the period described in
the audit reports. For example, a report on comparative financial statements requires a
representation letter addressing both years covered in our report.

②

Only include “Except as …” if there is a reported or disclosed issue or exception related to
the representation. This representation should be included both when a known issue was
disclosed and when the auditor is reporting on issues previously unknown to management.
When issues are reported, this representation signifies that all relevant information
regarding reported issues has been shared with the auditor, in addition to complete
disclosure of all known issues.

③

Only include this section when a financial statement audit has been conducted.

④

The auditor will communicate all non-trivial known or likely misstatements identified to
management. If you have not yet received this communication or are unclear as to the
nature, amount or effect of any uncorrected misstatements, contact the auditor.
If management believes certain items identified by the auditor are not misstatements,
management’s belief may be acknowledged by adding to the representation, for example,
“We do not agree that items XX and XX constitute misstatements because {description of
reasons}.”

⑤

Only include this section when a Single Audit has been conducted on federal programs
under 2 CFR § 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards.

⑥

Only include this section when a Single Audit has been conducted and when the
government has subrecipients expending Federal awards as defined by 2 CFR § 200.93.

⑦

Only include these representations when the government has subrecipients expending
$750,000 or more in Federal awards in a year, which would cause the subrecipient to have
their own Single Audit.

⑧

The letter should be signed by members of management with overall responsibility for
financial and operating matters who are responsible and knowledgeable about, directly or
through others, the matters covered in the representations. Generally, the letter is signed by
the chief executive officer (e.g. city manager, mayor, superintendent) and the chief
financial officer (e.g. finance officer, business manager, clerk/treasurer).
Additional signature lines may be added if requested. However, internal auditors should be
independent of management and, as such, would not be expected to sign the letter.

Any deviation from standard language provided in the template above should be discussed with
the auditor. If you need clarification on any point or feel you cannot make a representation, please
contact the auditor.
39
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EXAMPLE – LETTER OF REPRESENTATION TO BE TYPED ON ENTITY
LETTERHEAD
(USE THIS TEMPLATE WHEN A PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE AUDIT IS PERFORMED)
April 13, 2021
Megan McFarlane
WA State Auditor’s Office
451 SW Sedgwick Rd, Ste 200
Port Orchard, WA 98367

To the Washington State Auditor’s Office:
We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the passenger facility charge (PFC)
program of the Port of Port Angeles for the period January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019.
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve a weakness, omission or
misstatement of information that, in the light of surrounding circumstances, make it probable that
the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced
by the weakness, omission or misstatement.
We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made appropriate inquires to be able
to provide our representations, the following representations made to you during your audit:

1.

We acknowledge and understand our responsibility for complying with the requirements
of 14 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 158, “Passenger Facility Charges” (PFC).

2.

We have prepared the schedule of passenger facility charges collected, held and used in
accordance with 14 CFR Part 158. We believe that the schedule is fairly stated, in both
form and content, in accordance with those requirements.

3.

The methods of measurement and presentation of the schedule of passenger facility
charges collected, held, and used, are consistent with the prior period. There are no
significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of
the schedule.

4.

If the schedule of passenger facility charges collected, held, and used is ever distributed
separately from the audited financial statements, we confirm and understand our
responsibility to make the audited financial statements and the audit report available to
the intended users of that information.

5.

We have identified the requirements of laws, regulations, and any PFC Final Agency
Decision issued by the Federal Aviation Administration.

-1-
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6.

We have complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements related to
the PFC program.

7.

We have maintained internal control over our PFC program sufficient to provide
reasonable assurance that revenues are managed and expended in compliance with
program requirements.

8.

We have disclosed whether any changes in internal controls over the PFC program,
including any corrective action taken in response to findings, have occurred subsequent
to the audit period.

9.

We have made available all program agreements (including amendments, if any), copies
of all PFC Final Agency Decisions, and any other correspondence that has taken place
with the Federal Aviation Administration related to the PFC program.

10.

We are not aware of any amounts questioned or known noncompliance with requirements
of our PFC program occurring during or subsequent to the audit period. Further, we have
made available to the auditor the results of any other audits or program reviews.

11.

We have provided the auditor with all information regarding management decisions or
follow-up work performed by the Federal Aviation Administration on any findings
reported in the past.

12.

We have made available all documentation related to the compliance requirements,
including information related to PFC program financial reports.

13.

PFC program financial reports are prepared on a basis consistent with and supported by
the books and records from which the basic financial statements have been prepared.

14.

The copies of PFC program financial reports provided to the auditor are true copies of the
reports submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the Federal Aviation Administration or
air carriers.

(Signature)
(Name and Title)
(Airport or PFC Program Manager)

-2-
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(Signature)
(Name and Title)
(Chief Financial Officer)
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NOTES TO THE PREPARER

The date of the letter should match the date of the reports issued by the auditor.
The period covered by the representation letter must be the same as the period described in the
audit reports. For example, a report over comparative financial statements must be accompanied
by a representation letter covering both years in our report.

Any deviation from standard language provided in the template above should be discussed with
the auditor. If you need clarification on any point or feel that you cannot make a representation,
please contact the auditor.
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INFORMATIONAL REPORT
TO THE
BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS
April 13, 2021
Subject:

2020 CAPITAL PROJECTS REPORT

Presented by: Chris Hartman, Director of Engineering
BACKGROUND:
The Port’s 2020 Budget was adopted by the Commission on November 13, 2019
within Resolution 19-1206. The budget included $2,848,500 in spending from the
Port’s Capital Fund and $958,500 in federal and state grant funds for a total Capital
Projects Budget of $3,807,000. The following report, graphs and spreadsheet will
show the 2020 capital expenditures how they compare to budget.
ANALYSIS:
In 2020, the Port spent a total of $2,921450 and received $972,108 in grant
reimbursements for a net expenditure of Port funds of $1,949,342 (See attached
spreadsheet breakdown of each project).
The most notable changes in projected capital spending compared to the adopted
budget are detailed below:
•

Boom Lift (-$40,000)
o Further discussion with Longshoreman concluded that the purchase
of a larger boom lift was not necessary for the chip loading operation.
The ancillary benefits Port maintenance would have had from the
larger lift did not justify the purchase price.

•

Fairchild International Airport Sewer Extension (-$252,885)
o Budget was developed prior to start of design. Numerous utility
conflicts discovered during design along with an expansion in the
scope of work to include a water main extension and installation of
electrical conduit account for the increased project cost. The Port was
successful in being selected for a low interest loan of $750,000 from
the Community Aviation Revitalization Board that was not anticipated
during budget development.

•

FIA Maintenance Hangar Door Replacement (-$90,117)
o Preliminary assessment by a structural engineer revealed that
significant building modifications would be required in order to allow
for a larger door. The cost to complete the project increased to a point
where it outweighed the benefit.
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•

FIA Maintenance Hangar Roof Replacement (-$60,000)
o Project was completed at the end of 2019.

•

CMC Gate and Security Fence (-$92,726)
o The scope of the project was reduced to only include the fencing along
W. 18th Street. Additionally, the project cost spanned 2020 and 2021.
Total project cost will be approximately $75,000.

•

Boat Haven Entrance Signs (-$24,990)
o Purchase and installation of sign to the East Boat Haven was
completed at the end of 2019. The total cost of the project ended up
being less than $5,000.

•

East Port Angeles Boat Haven Parking Lot Resurfacing (-$392,636)
o Design and permitting of project is complete. The project was delayed
to 2021 to allow for reallocating staff resources to complete a time
sensitive federal grant application.

•

Capital Budget Contingency (-$71,976)
o A $200,000 contingency amount was included in the 2020 Capital
Budget. There were four unbudgeted projects with a total cost of
$110,587.

SUMMARY:
Despite the challenges of navigating COVID-19 related impacts, the Port continued
with its plan outlined in the budget developed in the fall of 2019. A few projects were
delayed but the Port still completed nearly $3 million dollars in Capital investment to
upgrade and maintain the Port’s infrastructure.

ATTACHMENTS:
• 2020 Capital Budget & 2020 Actual Bar graphs
• Spreadsheet showing project specific budgets and actual expenditures
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2020 CAPITAL BUDGET

Capital Budget =
$3,807,000
Grant Funds =
$ 958,500
Net Capital Budget = $2,848,500

2020 CAPITAL EXPENDITURES (ACTUAL)

Capital Expenditures =
$2,904,013
Grant Fund Reimbursements = $ 972,108
Net Capital Expenditures =
$ 1,931,905
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2020 CAPITAL BUDGET vs ACTUAL

DEPTS

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

ACTUAL
BUDGET
EXPENDITURE EXPENDITURE

BUDGET
GRANT $

ACTUAL
GRANT $

NET ACTUAL NET BUDGET

11-MT

*T3 Maintenance Dredge

$ 1,054,828

$ 1,000,000

$

54,828

11-MT

MT Suite 5 Remodel

$

12,377

$

20,000

$

(7,623)

11-MT

Emergency Radio (G)

$

2,970

$

40,000

$

(7,030)

11-MT

Boom Lift

15-MTA

Portable Work Space

$

15-MTA

B.Y. Building Upgrades

$

3,612

21-LY

Cofferdam Rehabilitation (L)

$

53,231

21-LY

LY Site & SW Impts (G)

$

364,029 $

250,000

$23,050

31-FIA

Sewer Extension (L)

$

797,115 $

300,000

$750,000

31-FIA

Maint. Hangar Roof Replace

$

-

31-FIA

Maint. Hangar Door Replace

$

9,883

31-FIA

Aviation Art

31-FIA

Runway 8/26 Rehab. (G)

$

33-ARP

1010-1050 Remodel

$

15,039

$

33-ARP

CMC Gate & Security Fence

$

57,274

$

41-PABH

Entrance Signs

$

41-PABH

E. Parking Lot Resurfacing

$

41-PABH

Boat Launch Surveilance (G)

41-PABH

Fuel Float Replace Design

$

80-AD

Admin parking Lot Rehabilitation

$

80-AD

Capital Budget Contingency

$30,000

$

40,000

$

(40,000)

14,282 $

20,000

$

(5,718)

$

50,000

$

(46,388)

$

133,000

$

10,000 $

(69,769)

$

150,000 $

240,979

$

(252,885)

60,000

$

(60,000)

$

100,000

$

(90,117)

$

15,000

$

(15,000)

673,500 $

(32,831)

50,000

$

(34,961)

150,000

$

(92,726)

10 $

25,000

$

(24,990)

7,364 $

400,000

$

(392,636)

$

201,727 $

$
161,950 $
37,737

709,000

$199,058

$

40,000

$

30,000 $

(10,000)

170,000

$

65,000 $

56,950

$

35,000

$

2,737

$

200,000

$

(200,000)

15-MTA

435 Marine Dr. HVAC

$

21,926

$

21,926

15-MTA

MTA Travelift Upgrades

$

53,066

$

53,066

33-ARP

Fire Alarm Panels Replace

$

18,900

$

18,900

91-MM

Mech Shop Barrel Door Repair

$

16,694

$

16,694

$

-

TOTALS =

$ 2,904,013 $ 3,807,000 $

972,108 $

958,500 $

(916,595)

L Project has received a 20-year low interest loan
G Project has received grant funding
* Project cannot be capitalized and will show up as an operational expense
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REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING
Tuesday, March 23, 2021, at 9:00 am
338 West First Street, Port Angeles, WA 98362
Minutes

On March 24, 2020 a new Governor’s proclamation went into effect regarding public meetings. By order of
Washington State Governor Jay Inslee, Proclamation 20-28.15, the Regular Commission Meeting will be available
to the public by conference or video call.

Steve Burke, Commissioner
Colleen McAleer, Commissioner
Connie Beauvais, Commissioner
Karen Goschen, Executive Director*
John Nutter, Deputy Executive Director
Chris Hartman, Dir. of Engineering
I.

Braedi Brown, Executive Assistant
Jesse Waknitz, Environmental Mgr.*
Mike Nimmo, Business Development Mgr.*
Jennifer Baker, Acctg. & Finance Mgr.*
Susan Scott, Real Estate Administrator*
* = attended via Zoom

CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Comm. Burke called the meeting to order at 9:00 am.

II.

EARLY PUBLIC COMMENT SESSION (TOTAL SESSION UP TO 20 MINUTES)
None.

III.

IV.

V.

WORK SESSION
A.

Covid-19 Update
• Presentation: John Nutter
• Discussion
• No Action

B.

4th Quarter Financial Report
• Presentation: John Nutter
• Discussion
• No Action

C.

Lease Compliance Report
• Presentation: John Nutter
• Discussion
• Motion to accept the Staff recommendations for the identified lease security
deviations: Comm. McAleer
• 2nd: Comm. Beauvais
• Vote: 3-0 (Unanimous)

D.

Benefits for Part Time Staff
• Presentation: Karen Goschen
• Discussion
• No Action

E.

Executive Director Recruitment Update
• Discussion
• No Action

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
A.

Special Commission Meeting Minutes – March 15, 2021

B.

Vouchers in the amount of $415,621.92
• Discussion
• Motion to approve consent agenda: Comm. Beauvais
• 2nd: Comm. McAleer
• Vote: 3-0 (Unanimous)

COMPLETION OF RECORDS
No items

47

VI.

VII.

PLANNING AND CAPITAL PROJECTS
A.

East Port Angeles Boat Haven Parking Lot Resurface Bid Award
• Presentation: Chris Hartman
• Discussion
• Motion to authorize the Deputy Executive Director to execute a contract with
Lakeside Industries Inc. for the East Boat Haven Parking lot Resurfacing
project for Two Hundred Forty-Three Thousand Eight Hundred Eighty-Seven
Dollars and Zero Cents ($243,887.00) plus Washington State Sales Tax:
Comm. McAleer
• 2nd: Comm. Beauvais
• Vote: 3-0 (Unanimous)

B.

Port Angeles Boat Haven Fuel Float Replacement Bid Award
• Presentation: Jesse Waknitz
• Discussion
• Motion to authorize the Deputy Executive Director to execute a contract with
American Construction Company Inc., for the Boat Haven Fuel Float
Replacement project for an amount not to exceed One Million Three Hundred
Forty-Eight Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars and Zero Cents ($1,348,800.00)
plus applicable Washington State Sales Tax: Comm. McAleer
• 2nd: Comm. Beauvais
• Vote: 3-0 (Unanimous)

C.

W. Port Angeles Boat Haven Restroom Replacement – Purchase
• Presentation: Jesse Waknitz
• Discussion
• Motion to authorize the Deputy Executive Director to execute a purchase
agreement, with CXT Incorporated under State of Washington Contract #
00213 for the amount not to exceed $208,000, plus applicable Washington
State Sales Tax: Comm. McAleer
• 2nd: Comm. Beauvais
• Vote: 3-0 (Unanimous)

D.

Draft Boat Yard General Permit – Comment Letter
• Presentation: Jesse Waknitz
• Discussion
• No Action

LOG YARD
No items

VIII.

MARINE TRADES AND MARINE TERMINALS
No items

IX.

PROPERTY
No items

X.

MARINAS
No items

XI.

AIRPORTS
No items

XII.

OTHER BUSINESS
A.

Letter in Support of Waterfront Center for Federal Earmarks Grant
• Presentation: Comm. Burke
• Discussion
• Consensus from the Commission was to all sign any letters of support that
come to them from Clallam County.
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XIII.

COMMISSIONER REPORTS

XIV.

ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA
John Nutter discussed the ‘Other User Fee’ in the budget that was previously asked in
the meeting, refers to longshore labor that is used for the chip barging operations.

XV.

PUBLIC COMMENT SESSION (TOTAL SESSION UP TO 20 MINUTES)
Colleen McAleer, Sequim, WA, Clallam County EDC, asked the Commission to direct
any questions regarding the funding available through the American Rescue Plan to the
Clallam County EDC. They have organized the information, that is currently accessible,
in an easy to assimilate manner. She asked all to review the Clallam EDC newsletters,
there is a lot of information coming out.

XVI.

FUTURE AGENDA

XVII. NEXT MEETINGS
A.

April 13, 2021 – Regular Commission Meeting

B.

April 26, 2021 – Special Joint Commission Meeting with the County

C.

April 27, 2021 – Regular Commission Meeting

D.

May 11, 2021 – Regular Commission Meeting

XVIII. UPCOMING EVENTS
XIX. BROWN BAG LUNCH AND OPEN DISCUSSION WITH THE COMMISSION (TIME
PERMITTING)
XX.

EXECUTIVE SESSION
The Board may recess into Executive Session for those purposes authorized under
Chapter 42.30 RCW, The Open Public Meetings Act.

XXI.

ADJOURN
Comm. Burke adjourned the meeting at 11:27 am.
PORT OF PORT ANGELES
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

__________________________
Steven Burke, President
_______________________________
Connie Beauvais, Secretary
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SPECIAL COMMISSION MEETING
Thursday, MARCH 25, 2021, at 1:30 pm
338 West First Street, Port Angeles, WA 98362
Minutes

On March 24, 2020 a new Governor’s proclamation went into effect regarding public meetings. By order of
Washington State Governor Jay Inslee, Proclamation 20-28.15, the Special Commission Meeting will be available
to the public by conference or video call.

Steve Burke, Commissioner
Colleen McAleer, Commissioner
Connie Beauvais, Commissioner
I.

Braedi Brown, Executive Assistant

CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (0:00-0:16)
Comm. Burke called the meeting to order at 1:30 pm.

II.

EXECUTIVE SESSION (0:17-0:44)
The Board may recess into Executive Session for those purposes authorized under
Chapter 42.30 RCW, The Open Public Meetings Act.
•

•
•
•
•
III.

Comm. Burke advised the Commission would convene an executive session;
anticipated length of executive session is 90 minutes. The Commission is not
expected to take final action following the executive session on either of the items
identified.
Discussion: One item to evaluate the qualifications of applicants for public
employment pursuant to RCW 43.30.110(1)(g)
Start Time: 1:30 pm
End Time: 3:00 pm
No Action

ADJOURN (0:45-1:02)
Comm. Burke adjourned the meeting at 3:00 pm.

PORT OF PORT ANGELES
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

__________________________
Steven Burke, President
_______________________________
Connie Beauvais, Secretary
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SPECIAL COMMISSION MEETING
Thursday, April 1, 2021, at 9:00 am
338 West First Street, Port Angeles, WA 98362
Minutes

On March 24, 2020 a new Governor’s proclamation went into effect regarding public meetings. By order of
Washington State Governor Jay Inslee, Proclamation 20-28.15, the Special Commission Meeting will be available
to the public by conference or video call.

Steve Burke, Commissioner
Colleen McAleer, Commissioner
Connie Beauvais, Commissioner
I.

Braedi Brown, Executive Assistant

CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (0:00-0:45)
Comm. Burke called the meeting to order at 9:00 am.

II.

EXECUTIVE SESSION (0:46-1:22)
The Board may recess into Executive Session for those purposes authorized under
Chapter 42.30 RCW, The Open Public Meetings Act.
•
•
•
•
•

III.

Comm. Burke advised the Commission would convene an executive session;
anticipated length of executive session is 4 hours. The Commission is not expected
to take final action following the executive session on either of the items identified.
Discussion: One item to evaluate the qualifications of applicants for public
employment pursuant to RCW 43.30.110(1)(g) and one item of legal risk pursuant to
RCW 43.30.110(1)(i)
Start Time: 9:00 am
End Time: 1:00 pm
No Action

ADJOURN (1:22-1:36)
Comm. Burke adjourned the meeting at 1:00 pm.

PORT OF PORT ANGELES
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

__________________________
Steven Burke, President
_______________________________
Connie Beauvais, Secretary
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SPECIAL COMMISSION MEETING
Thursday, April 8, 2021, at 10:00 am
338 West First Street, Port Angeles, WA 98362
MINUTES

On March 24, 2020 a new Governor’s proclamation went into effect regarding public meetings. By order of
Washington State Governor Jay Inslee, Proclamation 20-28.15, the Special Commission Meeting will be available
to the public by conference or video call.

Steve Burke, Commissioner
Colleen McAleer, Commissioner
Connie Beauvais, Commissioner
I.

Braedi Brown, Executive Assistant

CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (0:00-2:59)
Comm. Burke called the meeting to order at 10:00 am.

II.

EXECUTIVE SESSION (3:00-4:01)
The Board may recess into Executive Session for those purposes authorized under
Chapter 42.30 RCW, The Open Public Meetings Act.
•
•
•
•
•
•

III.

Comm. Burke advised the Commission would convene an executive session;
anticipated length of executive session is 3 hours. The Commission is not expected
to take final action following the executive session.
Discussion: One item to evaluate the qualifications of applicants for public
employment pursuant to RCW 43.30.110(1)(g)
Start Time: 10:00 am
Extended Time: 5 minutes
End Time: 1:05 pm
No Action

ADJOURN (4:01-4:03)
Comm. Burke adjourned the meeting at 1:05 pm.

PORT OF PORT ANGELES
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

__________________________
Steven Burke, President
_______________________________
Connie Beauvais, Secreta
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PORT OF PORT ANGELES
GENERAL FUND – LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL
VOUCHER APPROVAL
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the materials have been furnished, the
services rendered or the labor performed as described herein, that any advance payment is due and
payable pursuant to a contract or is available as an option for full or partial fulfillment of a contractual
obligation, and that the claim is a just, due and unpaid obligation against the Port of Port Angeles, and
that I am authorized to authenticate and certify to said claim.

SUMMARY TRANSMITTAL March 18, 2021 – April 7, 2021
Accounts Payable
For General Expenses and Construction
Accts Payable Checks (computer)
VOIDED/ZERO PAYABLE CHECKS
Accts Payable ACH
Manual Checks
VOIDED MANUAL CHECKS
Wire Transfer – Excise Tax
Wire Trandfer - Leasehold Tax
Wire Transfer - PMA (Longshore Payroll)
Total General Expenses and Construction

Begin
Check #

End
Check #

414200
414133
000164

Payroll
Employee Payroll – Draws Checks
Employee Payroll Checks Draw - (Direct Dep)
Voided Payroll Check
Voided Checks ==Stub Overrun==
Employee Payroll Chks PPD - Checks
Employee Payroll Checks PPD (Direct Dep)
Voided checks (stub overrun)

414270 $
$
000189 $
$
$
$
$
$

336,218.15
(376.16)
206,803.18
6,463.30
11,190.67

$

560,299.14

$
$
$

-

202025 $
804906 $

4,154.31
132,588.03

Wire Transfer – (Payroll Taxes, Retirement, Deferred Comp, L&I, OASI, PMFL)

$
$

62,012.54

Total Payroll
Total General Exp & Payroll

$
$

198,754.88
759,054.02

202018
804862

Voided direct deposit chks

Date: April 13, 2021
_____________________________
Port Representative

______________________________
Port Representative

______________________________
Commissioner, Steven D. Burke
______________________________
Commissioner, Connie Beauvais
______________________________
Commissioner, Colleen McAleer
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MONTHLY REPORT TO THE BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS
March 2021

SUBJECT:

REPORTS REQUIRED UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THE DELEGATION OF
AUTHORITY

REPORT

NO
ACTION

Lease Renewals/Options and 1 Year or
Less Agreements at Market Rates; Leases,
Assignments, Subleases,
Berthage/Dockage, & Miscellaneous (Use,
Equipment, Hangar, Marina Slips)

X

Lease Bond, Rental Insurance Deviations

X

Work Contracts ($50,000 or less) Executed

X

Work Contracts Completed

X

Change Orders Authorized

X

Work by Port Crews or Day Labor ($50,000
or less)

X

Claims Settled

X

Professional & Consulting Services Awarded
and Architectural, Engineering & Technical
Services Awarded

X

Fees Waived

X

Uncollectible Accounts Written Off

X

Experts Engaged for Litigation

X

Grant Applications/Award
Travel Outside WA, OR, ID and BC, Canada
Surplus Personal Property (under $10,000)

ATTACHED

X
X
X
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LEASES, RENEWALS, AMENDMENTS, MISC. AGREEMENTS
and OPTIONS EXECUTED
of One Year or Less Approved by Executive Director

(In Accordance with the Delegation of Authority, Res. 20-1216*)

March 2021
TENANT NAME

DOCUMENT

LOCATION

Angeles
Millworks &
Lumber Co., Inc.

Temporary
License
Agreement

Hardware supply
storage in the 1050
Building

FORM
OF
SURETY

ACREAGE/
SQ FOOT

Deposit

2,500 sf

TERM

Month-toMonth

MONTHLY
RENT

$750/month

COMMENTS

Short-term
storage

* New Leases, Amendments, Agreements of One Year or Less Approved by Executive Director In accordance with the Delegation of Authority (Res. 17-1158 dated 10-16-2017) Section 1D, “…the Executive
Director is authorized to issue dockage agreements, berthage agreements, tariffs and tariff amendments as necessary, provided that dockage agreements and berthage agreements shall be for a term
of one year or less and shall be at reasonable market rates for similar uses.
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PROFESSIONAL & PERSONAL SERVICES

AWARDED BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(In Accordance with Delegation of Authority)
March 2021

CONSULTANT

PROJECT

Marine Surveys &
Assessments

CLM Mitigation Site
Wetland Delineation

Cardno

914/916 Marine Dr.
Cultural Resource
Investigation

EST. COST

OTHER
CONTRACT
PROVISIONS

$2,485

N/A

$14,000

Hourly plus
expenses
Not to exceed
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Consultant Services Selection Summary
Type of Contract:

Personal

Professional

Sole Source

Emergency

Res 14-1076: Executive Director authorization shall not exceed $50,000. Change orders: original cost and all
change orders shall not exceed $50,000. All closely related contracts shall not exceed $50,000.
Sole Source personal serv ice contract $50,000 or more: requires Commission to ensure reasonable costs.
$50,000 to $150,000 requires evidence of competitive process
Over $150,000 formal competitive solicitation; requires RFP/RFQ
Non-Competed requires Commission approval to exempt a contract from a competitive process

1. Project Title

CLM (Airport) Mitigation Site Wetland Delineation

2. Consultant

Marine Surveys & Assessments

3. Approved Contract Amount

$2,485

4. SubAccount/GL Account #

31-1-00-MO

5. Budget & Fund Source

Airport Operation Budget

6. Project Manager

Jesse Waknitz, Environmental Manager

7. Other Terms: (sales tax)

Not Applicable (NA)

8. Closely Related Contracts

NA

9. Fed Funding Requirement*

NA

*If federal funding involved, stop and contact Engineering Department for federal requirements. Requires an RFP.

10. Justification
The US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) has requested that a professional biologist conduct a wetland survey of Zone
2 of the Wetland Mitigation Site under USACE Permit # NWS-2010-1349.

11. Scope of Services
For the wetland mitigation site constructed under USACE Permit # NWS-2010-1349 the consultant will conduct a
wetland delineation of Zone 2 for this mitigation site. This will include the following tasks:
1.

Task 1: On Site Field Investigation (Wetland Survey)

2.

Task 2: Wetland Rating
a.

GIS map for wetland survey findings

b.

Wetland delineation letter of findings

12. Contract Time

Start Date: 3.2.2021

Completion Date: 12.31.2021

Work should be completed in March 2021

Attachment A

Page 1 of 3
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57

13. Explanation of Cost, Work Schedule, and Contingency
The project cost is in line with the scope of work.

14. Procurement Schedule – Key Milestone Dates
NA

15. Authorized Contract Amount and Any Authorized Contingency
$2,485

Selection Requirements:

16. Evaluation Team Members
Jesse Waknitz – Environmental Manager

17. Proposals Evaluation/Summary
NA

18. Interviews Summary (if conducted)
NA

19. References Summary
NA

20. Negotiations Summary
NA

21. Selection Summary
Jesse Waknitz requested a proposal from Marine Surveys & Assessments per the MRSC & Washington Ports
Association Personal Services Contracting Manual for Washington Ports. The proposal from Marine Surveys &
Assessments was reasonable and detailed the correct scope of work to meet project goals.

The selection team members affirm that they do not have a conflict of interest with any of the firms
evaluated or key personnel of any of the firms, and that the selection process followed Port Consultant
Services Procurement Policy and Procedure
Attachment A
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SIGNATURES
3/1/2021
Project Manager

date

Selection team member (if needed)

Selection team member (if needed)

date

Engineering Director date (Required for public
work, professional, and grant funded contracts)

Commission Approval

Required

Scheduled Commission Meeting:

date

Not Required

Master Policy Report Date: March 2021

Approved Commission Meeting:

Attachment A

Page 3 of 3
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Consultant Services Selection Summary
Type of Contract:

Personal

Professional

Sole Source

Emergency

Res 14-1076: Executive Director authorization shall not exceed $50,000. Change orders: original cost and all
change orders shall not exceed $50,000. All closely related contracts shall not exceed $50,000.
Sole Source personal serv ice contract $50,000 or more: requires Commission to ensure reasonable costs.
$50,000 to $150,000 requires evidence of competitive process
Over $150,000 formal competitive solicitation; requires RFP/RFQ
Non-Competed requires Commission approval to exempt a contract from a competitive process

1. Project Title

914 / 916 Cultural Resource Investigation

2. Consultant

Cardno

3. Approved Contract Amount

$14,000

4. SubAccount/GL Account #

15-1-10-M0

5. Budget & Fund Source

Operating Contingency

6. Project Manager

Chris Hartman, Director of Engineering

7. Other Terms: (sales tax)

Not Applicable (NA)

8. Closely Related Contracts

NA

9. Fed Funding Requirement*

NA

*If federal funding involved, stop and contact Engineering Department for federal requirements. Requires an RFP.

10. Justification
Cultural resource survey and reporting are required to be completed by or under the supervision of Professional
Archaeologist. Currently no one on the Port staff is a practicing professional archaeologist, thus this work needs to be
done by a professional consulting firm.

11. Scope of Services
Surveying
Monitoring of excavation of ~ 20 test pits.
Laboratory Analysis
Report

12. Contract Time

Start Date: January 19, 2021

Completion Date: Dec 31, 2021

This work should be completed in approximately 6-weeks, but the expiration date is extended in case there is any
follow-up work that needs to be completed.

Attachment A
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13. Explanation of Cost, Work Schedule, and Contingency
The project cost is in line with the scope of work.

14. Procurement Schedule – Key Milestone Dates
NA

15. Authorized Contract Amount and Any Authorized Contingency
$14,000 -

Selection Requirements:

16. Evaluation Team Members
Chris Hartman, P.E. / Director of Engineering

17. Proposals Evaluation/Summary
The Port of Port Angeles has confidence in Cardno’s qualifications and quality of work. Cardno has completed the
Port’s archaeological monitoring and permitting since 2017 and has established a very positive working relationship
with the Lower Elwha Klallam Tribe. The Port staff has reviewed qualifications from other archaeological firms, but
believes Cardno to be the most qualified to complete this work.

18. Interviews Summary (if conducted)
NA

19. References Summary
Port of Port Angeles
Floyd | Snider
Lower Elwha Klallam Tribe

20. Negotiations Summary
NA

21. Selection Summary
Cardno was selected as the most qualified firm to perform this work.

Attachment A
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The selection team members affirm that they do not have a conflict of interest with any of the firms
evaluated or key personnel of any of the firms, and that the selection process followed Port Consultant
Services Procurement Policy and Procedure

SIGNATURES

3/18/2021
Project Manager

date

Selection team member (if needed)

date

03/18/2021
Selection team member (if needed)

Commission Approval

date

Required

Scheduled Commission Meeting:

Engineering Director date (Required for public
work, professional, and grant funded contracts)
Not Required

Master Policy Report Date: 04/27/2021

Approved Commission Meeting:

Attachment A
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ITEM FOR CONSIDERATION
BY THE
BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS
April 13, 2021
Subject:

MOFFAT & NICHOL AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 01BOAT HAVEN FUEL FLOAT CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT SERVICES

Presented by: Jesse Waknitz, Environmental Manager
RCW & POLICY REQUIREMENTS
Engineering consultants are procured utilizing a “Qualification Based Selection” process
as required by RCW 39.80 for a “professional service”. Per Commission Resolution 201216 Master Policy Section VI.B.1, all changes in contract fee that exceed the lesser of
$50,000 or 10% of the last approved total require Commission approval.
BACKGROUND:
For the design of the Boat Haven Fuel Float, the Port advertised a Request for
Qualifications (RFQ) in the Peninsula Daily News and the Seattle Daily Journal of
Commerce in July 2019. The Port received three (3) proposals from engineering firms,
which were KPFF, Anderson Environmental Contracting and Moffatt & Nichol. Following
a review and scoring of proposals, Moffatt & Nichol was selected as the most qualified
and was awarded a contract for the design of the Port Angeles Boat Haven Fuel Float on
March 10, 2020 by the Port Commission.
The original agreement with Moffatt & Nichol included design services and bidding
support for the Fuel Float Replacement Project. The original agreement was for $177,812
and was executed by the Executive Director on March 16, 2020.
ANALYSIS:
Design of the fuel float project was completed in December 2020; the project was bid in
February 2021 and the low bid was awarded to American Construction in March 2021.
The project will be constructed in the winter of 2021/2022. Engineering construction
support services are needed for this project.
Moffat & Nichol prepared a proposal that included the scope for construction support with
a total fee of $48,300. The proposal is broken down by task below:
1. Project Management and Quality Control
2. Construction Meetings
3. Submittal Review
4. Contractor Request for Information Review
5. Construction Observations (Pile Driving)
6. Project Closeout & Record Documents
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ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT:
This project has been through environmental reviews and the Port has received the
required local, state and federal permits.
FISCAL IMPACT:
The Port’s 2021 Capital Budget allocated $550,000 in 2021 and $210,000 in 2022 for
this project.
Below is a breakdown of the total estimated project cost:
• 1 Low bid - Construction
• Construction Support
Total Project Cost =
1 Low

$1,470,000
$ 50,000
$1,520,000

bid including $50,000 Force Account Contingency, Sales Tax and rounded up to the nearest $10,000

Projected Project Costs 2021 & 2022
Item
Construction Cost Estimate

Total Cost
2021 Cost
2022 Cost
$1,520,000 $1,140,000
$380,000

RCO BIG Grant
CVA Pumpout Grant
Total

$432,587.00 $324,440.25 $108,146.75
$242,738.00 $182,053.50
$60,684.50
$675,325.00 $506,493.75 $168,831.25

Total Port Share
2021 Budget
Budget Exceedance

$844,675.00 $633,506.25 $211,168.75
$760,000.00 $550,000.00 $210,000.00
$84,675.00
$83,506.25
$1,168.75

Current project estimate exceeds the 2021 budget by a net of $84,675. The projected
cost overrun can be offset by the cost savings, compared to budget, from the East Boat
Haven Parking Lot project to maintain estimated total capital spending consistent with the
Port’s budget.
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends the Commission authorize the Deputy Executive Director to execute
Professional Service Agreement Amendment 01 with Moffatt & Nichol in the amount of
Forty-Eight Thousand Three Hundred Dollars and Zero Cents ($48,300.00).
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ITEM FOR CONSIDERATION
BY THE
BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS

Date:

April 13, 2021

SUBJECT:

INSITU ECOSYSTEMS, LLC Lease and Amendments

Presented by:

John Nutter, Deputy Executive Director

RCW & POLICY REQUIREMENTS
Port of Port Angeles Delegation of Administrative Authority to Executive Director
Per Section I, Paragraph A.1 - Leases - General Authorization: The Executive Director
is authorized to negotiate the terms of all leases. The Executive Director shall, as
required by this Delegation of Authority and as otherwise deemed appropriate by the
Executive Director, inform the Commission of proposed terms and conditions of such
leases and the progress of negotiations. Prior to the presentation of any lease which
requires Commission approval, the Executive Director shall inform each Commissioner
of the proposed terms of such lease.
Per Section I, Paragraph B.1 - Leases - Commission Approval Required: Commission
approval…is required (for) any lease with a term in excess of one (1) year.
Per Section I, Paragraph C.1 - Lease Term of One Year or Less: The Executive Director
is authorized, without prior Commission approval, to execute and amend any lease with
a term of one year or less…(if) a) the lease agreement (is) on the Port's standard
written form of lease; and b) the monthly rental amount (is) a fair market rental for
property of the same or similar class and type and devoted to similar uses.
RCW 53.08.085, Lease of property—Security for rent
Per RCW 53.08.085, security for rent is required for every lease of more than one year.
Rent may be secured by rental insurance, bond, or other security satisfactory to the port
commission, in an amount equal to one-sixth of the total rent, but in no case shall such
security be less than one year's rent or more than three years' rent. If the security is not
maintained, the lease shall be considered in default. The port commission may, in its
discretion, waive the rent security requirement or lower the amount of such requirement
on the lease of real and/or personal port property.
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BACKGROUND:
The start-up company InSitu Ecosystems, LLC, manufactures environmentally dynamic
plug-and-play vivariums that closely replicate tropical ecosystems
(https://insituecosystems.com/). Since its start in September 2019, this international
company has enjoyed significant growth, despite the pandemic. It continues to expand
with a newly licensed assembly plant in the U.K. All vivarium parts are manufactured in
the Phase I Addition of the 1050 building, as is most of the assembly. Insitu
Ecosystems engages local businesses such as CRTC to help with parts manufacturing.
On September 6, 2019, a month-to-month lease was executed for Insitu Ecosystems,
LLC by the Executive Director commencing September 15, 2019. The initial lease area
included 2,301 sf of the Phase I Addition (West and East) with other areas added as
depicted below:

Port and tenant agreed that a month-to-month lease was best for two reasons: The
company was a start-up business, and the Phase I Addition was not a stand-alone
facility. The Addition lacks adequate services within the lease area, such as
water/wastewater for manufacturing and bathroom facilities. The space may not have
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sufficient power distribution for future needs, and as the addition is open to the rest of
the 1050 building, security is an issue.
Within the first year of the lease, the Deputy Executive Director executed the first
amendment on April 20, 2020. The amendment increased the building lease area by
1,204 sf for a total of 3,505 sf.
As this lease now exceeds a year, Staff presents Insitu Ecosystem's second
amendment to the Commission for approval. Staff and Insitu Ecosystems have
negotiated this amendment increasing the building lease area by 1,250 sf for a total of
4,755. The amendment also includes an increase in base rent, financial security, and a
change in the CPI index used for annual escalation.
Because of Insitu's continued growth, the company anticipates occupying the entire
8,500 sf Phase I Addition by the end of 2021.
SECOND AMENDMENT DETAILS:
Building Lease Area: Increases from 3,505 sf to 4,755 sf.
Address: 2140 W 18th Street
Port Area: This lease falls within the Composite Manufacturing Campus and is
consistent with current and long-term use plans of the area.
Use: Assembly of Lessee's vivarium products.
Monthly Payments: $2,214.12/mon including LET. ($0.406/sq ft - base rate)
Current Term: month-to-month
Lease Commencement Date: September 15, 2019
First Amendment Commencement Date: April 20, 2020
Second Amendment Commencement Date: Retroactive to March 15, 2021
Common Area Maintenance (CAM): None
Utilities: Lessee pays a fixed monthly electrical charge of $300/month to the Port
Tenant Improvements: none
Bond/Security: One month's rent of $2,214.12 (including LET) plus a $500.00 cleaning
deposit.
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Escalation: The second lease amendment rectifies an incorrect referral to the
Consumer Price Index for the United States Western Region, All Urban Consumers,
that is present in the Port's template lease and InSitu's lease. It is replaced with the
Consumer Price Index for the United States WEST - Size Class B/C, All Urban
Consumers.
Non-standard terms requiring Commission approval for renewal/amendment:
None
Unique Terms: None
Other Special Considerations: None
Open Items: None
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT:
None
FISCAL IMPACT OF THE SECOND LEASE AMENDMENT:
Lease Area

Sq Ft

$/sf

Northeast corner Work Area
1,250 $0.4060
West Room
1,204 $0.4060
East Room
989 $0.4060
Receiving Room
1,312 $0.4060
Building Lease Area Subtotal
Container Storage Land
320 $0.0203
Bathroom Access
n/a
Parking
1,239 $0.0203
SUBTOTAL
Leasehold Excise Tax 12.84%

Monthly Rate
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Monthly Payment Total $

507.50
488.82
401.53
532.67
1,930.53
6.50
25.15
1,962.18 $
251.94

Annual
Revenue

23,546.13

2,214.12

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends the Commission approve the lease's continuation on a month-tomonth basis and approve and authorize the Deputy Executive Director to sign the
second lease amendment per the terms and conditions as stated.
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ITEM FOR CONSIDERATION
BY THE
BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS
April 13, 2021
SUBJECT:

Century West Engineering Runway Rehabilitation – Phase 2
Final Design – Consultant Services Agreement

STAFF LEAD:

Dan Gase, Airport Manager

RCW & POLICY REQUIREMENTS:
The Delegation of Authority section II requires Commission approval of work contracts
exceeding $50,000.
BACKGROUND:
In 2019 the Port staff conducted an RFQ process to select an aviation engineering firm
to lead the design and engineering phase of the runway and taxiway rehabilitation
process. Century West Engineering was the unanimous choice by staff due to their
expertise and experience with similar projects.
In order to maintain the design and engineering timeline needed to be ready for the
rehabilitation project in the summer of 2022, the Port engaged Century West to
complete some of the pre-design and survey work which was necessary to better inform
the decisions on the full scope of work in the future.
Based upon the preliminary work, Century West developed a design and engineering
plan to facilitate the runway rehabilitation. Their plan was reviewed and approved by
the FAA. Phase 1 of design has been underway since late 2020. The 90% design was
submitted to the FAA in March 2021, and approval is anticipated by late April. The
Phase 2 Final Design is the next step in preparation for the runway rehabilitation project
scheduled for the summer of 2022. This final design contract and the fee for the service
has been approved by the FAA.
In early 2020, the Covid-19 pandemic occurred. As a part of the financial stimulus
package that Congress responded with, all AIP grants for 2020 were increased from the
usual 90% of cost reimbursement to 100% reimbursement. The forthcoming grant to
reimburse the Port for this final design work will also be at 100% reimbursement.
The 100% AIP funded contract with Century West Engineering requires Commission
approval. The document is attached for reference. Commission approval is also
required for submittal of the FAA AIP grant application, which will cover reimbursement
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for this Century West runway rehabilitation final design contract as well as a future
contract for final design of the taxiway rehabilitation project (contract anticipated in May
2021).
FISCAL IMPACT:
No fiscal impact. Because of the Covid-19 fiscal stimulus, the project will be funded by
the FAA at 100%.
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT:
No environmental impact. The rehabilitation of the existing runway was reviewed by the
environmental specialist from the FAA’s Seattle Airport District Office. It has been
determined there is no environmental impact that would trigger SEPA, NEPA, or other
environmental review.
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1. Staff recommend the Commission pass a motion authorizing the Deputy
Executive Director to sign the contract with Century West Engineering for the
Phase 2 Final Design at a total cost of $129,995.40.
2. Staff recommends the Commission pass a motion authorizing the Deputy
Executive Director to sign and submit the corresponding FAA AIP grant
application for final design of the runway rehabilitation project and final design of
the taxiway rehabilitation project.
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CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT
PROJECT:
Runway Rehabilitation – Phase 2 Final Design
CONSULTANT: Century West Engineering
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the Port of Port Angeles (hereinafter referred
to as the "Port") and Century West Engineering Corporation
(hereinafter
referred
to
as
the
"Consultant") for the furnishing of consultant services for Runway Rehabilitation – Phase 2 Final Design.
The Port and Consultant mutually agree as follows:

SCOPE AND SCHEDULE OF WORK
List of Deliverables: See Exhibit A
Note: See Exhibit A for scope details.

COMPENSATION
This will be accomplished on a total fee and expense basis and will not exceed
prior written approval from the Port.

$129,995.40 , without

LENGTH OF AGREEMENT
The length of this agreement is from last date signed

through December 31, 2022

.

RATE AND FEE SCHEDULE AND OUT-OF-POCKET EXPENSES
See Fee Schedule in Attachment B.

REPRESENTATIVES
The Port’s Project Manager and Consultant’s Representative for this Agreement are as specified. Alternate
representatives may be appointed by either party with written notice to the other party.
Port’s Project Manager:
Dan Gase, Airport Manager
Consultant’s Representative: Melanie Johansen, Project Manager; Kurt Addicott, Sr. Project Manager

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
In consideration of the mutual covenants, obligations, and compensation to be paid by the Port to
Consultant, it is agreed that:

1. Relationship of the Parties
Consultant, its subconsultants and employees, is an independent Contractor. Nothing contained herein
shall be deemed to create a relationship of employer and employee or of principal and agent.

2. Conflicts of Interest
Consultant warrants that it has no direct or indirect economic interest which conflicts in any manner with its
performance of the services required under this Agreement. Consultant warrants that it has not retained
any person to solicit this Agreement and has not agreed to pay such person any compensation or other
consideration contingent upon the execution of this Agreement.

3. Compliance with Laws
Consultant agrees to comply with all local, state, tribal and federal laws and regulations applicable to the
services, including registration and taxes, permitting regulations and those regarding employee safety, the
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work place environment, and employment eligibility verifications as required by the Immigration and
Naturalization Service. Consultant shall obtain all licenses and permits required to complete the scope of
work as defined.
The Port shall furnish Consultant with the information required by the Hazard Communication standard for
materials preexisting on the project site. Consultant will ensure that this information is made available to
the Consultant’s personnel and subconsultants, and incorporated into the contract documents as
appropriate.

4. Suspension and Debarment
By signing this agreement, the Consultant verifies that it has not been suspended or debarred from working
on federally funded projects

5. Records and other Tangibles
Until the expiration of six years after the term of this Agreement, Consultant agrees to maintain accurate
records of all work done in providing services specified by the Agreement and following Consultant’s receipt
of final payment therefore to deliver such records to the Port upon termination of the Agreement or otherwise
as requested by the Port.

6. Ownership of Work
The services to be performed by Consultant shall be deemed instruments of service for purposes of the
copyright laws of the United States. The Port has ownership rights to the work products prepared by the
Consultant in performing these services. Consultant shall not be responsible for changes made in the work
products by anyone other than the Consultant. Consultant shall have free right to retain, copy and use any
tangible materials or information produced but only for its own internal purposes. Use of documents or
other materials prepared under this Agreement for promotional purposes shall require the Port’s prior
consent.

7. Disclosure
All information developed by the Consultant and all information made available to the Consultant by the
Port, and all analyses or opinions reached by the Consultant shall be confidential and shall not be disclosed
by the Consultant without the written consent of the Port except to the extent required by law or legal
process.

8. Deliverables
Unless otherwise specified in the Scope of Work, Consultant shall provide draft deliverables to the Port for
review prior to preparation of final deliverables. Delivery of materials produced shall consist both of the
tangible materials and any and all computer files used in the creation of the tangible product in the original
format in which it was created and a PDF format or other format specified by the Port.

9. Compensation
As full compensation for the performance of its obligations of this Agreement and the services to be
provided, the Port shall pay Consultant as specified in the Agreement. Compensation for vehicle usage
will be paid at the current Internal Revenue Service allowable mileage reimbursement rate based on road
mileage distance between Consultant’s office and project location. Consultant’s expenses will be
reimbursed at cost. Hourly rates shall include all of Consultant’s routine administration and overhead
expenses, including all equipment, software, tools and supplies reasonably required to perform the scope
of services. The Port will not separately reimburse Consultant for routine overhead expenses or
administration including but not limited to:
A. Computer hardware or software usage
B. Digital camera or recording equipment
C. Communications - including phone, internet, fax, postage and courier
D. Routine reproduction except for documents produced by outside vendor
E. Small tools and expendables.
F. Federal, state or local taxes
G. Safety training and equipment
H. Time devoted to Agreement negotiation, invoicing or dispute resolution.
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10. Payment Schedule
Consultant shall submit detailed numbered invoices showing description of work items being invoiced, work
order number, title of project, total authorized, total current invoice, balance of authorization, individual’s
names and titles, hours, hourly rate and all authorized expenses itemized, with backup, by the 10th of the
month to be paid by the end of the current month, unless other terms are agreed to by the parties.

11. Costs and Disbursements
Consultant shall pay all costs and disbursements required for the performance of its services under this
Agreement.

12. Indemnity
For all claims arising from the performance of the Consultant’s professional services Consultant and its
subconsultants agree to indemnify and hold harmless the Port of Port Angeles, its appointed and elective
officers and its employees from and against any and all suits, claims, actions, losses, costs, penalties and
damages of whatever kind and nature, including attorney fees and costs, by reason of any and all claims
and demands on it, its officers and employees, to the extent arising from the negligent acts, errors or
omissions by the Consultant in the performance of the Consultant’s professional services.

13. Insurance
Prior to commencement of services under this Agreement and if required below, Consultant shall procure
and maintain one or more lines of insurance coverage to be kept in force for the life of this Agreement. If
required, insurance shall be procured from insurance carriers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less
than ”A VI”. Consultant shall submit to the Port a Certificate of Insurance which shows that it has obtained
the required coverage(s). Coverage shall not lapse or be terminated without written notification to the Port,
delivered electronically or by mail, not less than thirty (30) days prior to any such lapse or termination.
Consultant agrees to notify the Port of any material change of coverage or reduction in limits. Except for
professional liability, the Port shall be named as an additional insured on all policies on ISO Form CG 20
10 Form B.
This Agreement
[Does]
[Does not] require commercial general liability insurance. If neither box is
checked, commercial general liability insurance is required. If required, the following will apply:
Consultant shall procure and maintain during the life of this Agreement commercial general liability
coverage on occurrence form CG0001 or equivalent with limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence and
$2,000,000 aggregate;
This Agreement
[Does]
[Does not] require automobile liability insurance. If neither box is checked,
automobile liability insurance will be required.
Consultant shall procure and maintain during the life of this Agreement automobile liability insurance
covering owned, non-owned and hired vehicles of $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident. Sole
proprietors may provide coverage on a Personal Auto Policy in lieu of a Commercial Auto coverage form.
This Agreement
[Does]
[Does not] require Professional Liability insurance coverage. If neither box
is checked, the Agreement does require this coverage.
Consultant shall procure and maintain during the life of this Agreement professional liability insurance of
$1,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate. Insurance shall have a retroactive date before the date of
commencement of services and shall remain in effect for the term of this Agreement plus three years.

14. Force Majure
Neither the Port nor the Consultant shall hold the other party responsible for damages or delay in
performance caused by acts of god, strikes, lockouts, accidents, or other events beyond the control of the
other or the other’s employees and agents.
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15. Standard of Care
Consultant shall perform its work to conform to generally accepted professional standards. Consultant shall
be responsible for the professional quality, technical adequacy and accuracy, timely completion and
coordination of all deliverables prepared under this Agreement Consultant shall, without additional
compensation, correct or revise any errors or omissions in such deliverables. The Port’s approval of
deliverables shall not relieve Consultant of responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy thereof. The
Consultant shall remain liable for damages and costs incurred by the Port to the extent arising from the
Consultant’s errors, omissions or negligent performance of services furnished under this Agreement.

16. Competitive Specification
This Agreement
[Does]
[Does not] require development of plans or specifications. If required, the
following paragraph shall apply:
Consultant shall provide for the maximum use of materials, equipment, construction methods and products
that are readily available through competitive procurement, or through standard or proven production
techniques.
Consultant shall not produce a design or specification which would be restrictive or written in a manner as
to contain proprietary requirements other than those based on performance, unless such requirements are
necessary to demonstrate a specific outcome or to provide for necessary interchangeability of parts and
equipment. Consultant shall justify in writing the use of any sole source. Where brand names are identified,
they shall be followed by the salient product performance characteristics and the words “or approved equal”
so that comparable quality or utility may be determined.

17. Time
Time is of the essence in the performance by the Consultant of the services required by this Agreement.
The Consultant shall complete its services within the milestones set forth in the project schedule. The
Consultant shall also address issues which may result in completion beyond the established schedule or
budget.

18. Assignability
Consultant shall not assign any interest in this Agreement and shall not transfer any interest in the
Agreement to any party without prior written consent of the Port.

19. Term of this Agreement
The effective dates of this Agreement are as specified. This Agreement may be terminated by the Port for
cause when the Port deems continuation to be detrimental to its interests or for failure of the consultant to
perform the services specified in the Agreement. The Port may terminate this Agreement at any time for
government convenience in which case it shall provide notice to the Consultant and reimburse the
Consultant for its costs and fees incurred prior to the notice of termination. The provisions and warranties
contained in this Agreement that by their sense and context are intended to survive the completion of
performance or termination of this Agreement shall so survive. All indemnities provided in this Agreement
shall survive the expiration or any earlier termination of this Agreement.

20. Disputes
If a dispute arises relating to this Agreement and cannot be settled through direct discussions, the parties
agree to endeavor to settle the dispute through a mediation firm acceptable to both parties, the cost of
which shall be divided equally. The Port reserves the right to join any dispute under this Agreement with
any other claim in litigation or other dispute resolution forum, and the Consultant agrees to such joinder, so
that all disputes related to the project may be consolidated and resolved in one forum. Venue for any
litigation shall be the Clallam County Superior Court of the state of Washington and the prevailing party
shall be entitled to recover its costs and reasonable attorney fees.

21. Extent of Agreement
This Agreement represents the entire and integrated understanding between the Port and Consultant and
may be amended only by written instrument signed by both the Port and Consultant.

22. Order of Precedence
The provisions of this Agreement are complimentary and shall be interpreted to give effect to all of its
provisions. Any inconsistency in this Agreement shall be resolved in the following order of precedence:
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EXHIBIT A
Scope of Work
March 12, 2020_r5
Port of Port Angeles
William R. Fairchild International Airport
Phase 2 Design – Runway Rehabilitation Final Design
GENERAL PROJECT DESCRIPTION, BACKGROUND, & PURPOSE/NEED
William R. Fairchild International Airport (KCLM or “the Airport”) is owned and operated by the
Port of Port Angeles (Port or “the Owner”), and is located near Port Angeles, Washington,
approximately one mile north of U.S. Highway 101 and three miles west of Port Angeles’s city
center, in Clallam County, Washington. The Airport has an elevation of 291 feet above mean sea
level (MSL).
The Airport serves general aviation (GA) users and does not have scheduled commercial airline
service. The Airport is classified as a Regional GA airport by the Federal Aviation Administration
(FAA) National Plan of Integrated Airport Systems (NPIAS).
Runway Rehabilitation
Runway 8-26 is currently 6,350’ long x 150’ wide with a displaced threshold at the Runway 26
end. The existing runway pavement is showing deterioration including longitudinal and transverse
cracking and has a Pavement Condition Index (PCI) of 62, indicating the need for major
rehabilitation. The most recent pavement rehabilitation was an overlay performed in 1996 on the
east half of the runway. The west half of the runway was previously overlaid in 1989.
A Preliminary Design Analysis Report dated January 2020 was prepared by Century West
Engineering as a previous phase of work. The preliminary report outlined the recommended
project parameters for the runway rehabilitation. The runway rehabilitation will consist of a mill
and overlay of the 5,000-foot runway length up to the Runway 26 displaced threshold and the full
150-foot width. Associated connecting taxiways (Taxiways F, G, and H) will be overlaid out to the
RSA. A nominal amount of overlay will be provided on Taxiways C and D to match into existing
grades. Connecting Taxiway E will be closed and decoupled from the runway in anticipation of
future removal. The project will also include a MagVar change from Runway 8-26 to Runway 927. (MagVar change was submitted to IFP Gateway portal in February 2020.) As part of the
project, the runway edge lighting and signage system will be replaced and new hold signs installed
consistent with the MagVar changes. From the preliminary report a subsequent Runway Phase
1 design to progress the runway project to a 90% complete design package was prepared by
Century West Engineering as a previous phase of work.
The runway project has been previously determined to be NEPA CatEx by the FAA.
Taxiway Rehabilitation/Reconstruction
The parallel Taxiway A system including connector taxiways is also in need of rehabilitation and/or
some reconstruction. The taxiway portion of the project is anticipated to consist of a crack seal
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and slurry seal on the eastern portion of Taxiway A (approximately 2,700 feet, from Taxiway B to
Taxiway E) and full reconstruction of the western portion of Taxiway A (approximately 3,800 feet
from Taxiway E to Taxiway H), as outlined in the Preliminary Design Analysis Report. The taxiway
project is also anticipated to include removal of existing connecting Taxiways D and E and
construction of a new, realigned taxiway as shown on the ALP. The connecting taxiways will be
renamed to comply with the nomenclature convention contained in FAA Engineering Brief 89, as
noted on the ALP. As part of the taxiway project, the cross wind Runway 13/31 will be decoupled
from Runway 8/26, and subsequently closed.
The taxiway project, as it is anticipated to include reconstruction, still requires a documented
NEPA CatEx review. This scope of work does not include any design for the Taxiway Project.
Final design for the Taxiway Rehabilitation/Reconstruction will be covered under a future scope
of work.
Previous, Current, & Future Project Phases
Previous project Phases have been undertaken for the runway and taxiway design efforts.
Previous phases have included:
• Preliminary Investigations and Engineering Analysis (Runway & Taxiway)
• Phase 1 Design (Runway to 90% Design & Taxiway to 50% Design)
The runway and taxiway projects are anticipated to be bid and constructed separately. The
runway project is programmed to be bid in 2021, and constructed in 2022. The taxiway project is
anticipated to be bid in 2022 and constructed in 2023.
Current phase includes:
• Runway Phase 2 Design (Runway Final Design from 90% to 100% & Bidding Support)
Future phases of work will include:
• Runway Construction Administration
• Taxiway Final Design, Bidding, and Construction Administration
Runway Rehabilitation Project Elements
The final engineering from 90% to 100% completion of the runway rehabilitation project will
include progressing the design and bid package for the following project elements:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Runway Rehabilitation (Mill & Overlay)
Connector Taxiway Transition Paving (Mill & Overlay)
Runway Edge Lighting Replacement (MIRLs)
Runway Signage Replacement (distance remaining and runway exit signs)
Taxiway Signage Revisions (as required for MagVar change)
Re-marking Runway (including new designations for MagVar change)
Runway grooving

The attached project graphic depicts the elements of work for the Runway project.
Both the runway and taxiway rehabilitation project elements will be funded by FAA Airport
Improvement Program (AIP) grants at 90% with a 10% Port or other grant match.
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The activities and work elements for each task are described in the scope of work that follows.

TASK 1 – PROJECT MANAGEMENT / ADMINISTRATION
Task 1 Work Items:
1.1

Finalize work scope and negotiate contract.

1.2

Prepare a detailed scope of work and figures without costs for the Port’s use in obtaining an
independent fee estimate (IFE) from a separate consulting firm. Provide information as
needed to assist the Port in preparing a record of negotiations.

1.3

Carry out project administration including, but not limited to monitoring design and project
schedules, coordination of project with the Port and FAA, monitoring and reporting technical
and budget issues to the Port and FAA, preparation of monthly consultant invoices for
submittal to the Port, and preparation of project status reports. It is assumed the final runway
design phase of the project will extend over a 5 month period.

1.4

Prepare one Design Grant application and associated sketches. It is assumed one grant will
be issued to cover final design and bidding for the runway project. A future grant will be
issued to cover final design and bidding of the taxiway project.

1.5

Provide ongoing coordination with FAA on previously submitted MagVar change for Runway
8-26 to Runway 9-27 to FAA Portal. Consultant will coordinate timing and logistics between
FAA Procedures updates, procedure publishing, and the timing of construction
improvements.

1.6

Organize FAA Discovery Meeting with ATO to determine potential (if any) impacts to FAAowned equipment as a part of the project. Consultant will provide conference call-in line,
meeting agenda, and meeting minutes. The Senior Project Manager and Senior Project
Engineer will attend the meeting.

1.7

Coordinate FAA Reimbursable Agreement for the flight check of the runway MagVar
approach procedure changes.

1.8

Prepare Strategic Event Notification forms for submittal to FAA. Up to 3 submittals are
assumed.

1.9

Coordinate internal project team and subconsultant.

1.10 Conduct conference call check-in meetings with FAA representatives throughout project
final design. (Assume 4 conference calls.)
1.11 Provide a detailed project schedule for FY2021 Runway Phase 2 Design to the Airport and
FAA. (Assume 3 revisions.)
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1.12 Assist the Airport with preparation and submittal of FAA Sponsor Certifications; prepare
eInvoicing spreadsheets and FAA Quarterly Performance Reports (form 5370-1) throughout
the project; prepare annual financial reporting (forms 425, and 270/271).
1.13 Prepare FY2021 design grant financial closeout per FAA Engineering Guidance.
Primary Task 1 Deliverables:
• Contract scope and fee schedule
• Documents for Independent Fee Estimate (IFE) review
• Project schedule
• FAA grant application
• FAA quarterly and annual reporting forms
• Design reports
TASK 2 – SURVEY & PROJECT BASE MAP SET UP
The survey and base map prepared under the previous phase of the project provided the
necessary information for design of the runway rehabilitation sections.
Task 2 Work Items:
•

This effort was previously completed, and no additional effort is anticipated within this
scope of work.

Primary Task 2 Deliverables:
• None

TASK 3 – GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION
The geotechnical report prepared under the previous phase of the project provided the
necessary information for design of the runway rehabilitation sections.
Task 3 Work Items:
•

This effort was previously completed, and no additional effort is anticipated within this
scope of work.

Primary Task 3 Deliverables:
• None
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TASK 4 – ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW AND PERMITTING
Per previous coordination with the FAA, the runway rehabilitation project has been determined
to be NEPA Categorically Excluded. No additional NEPA review is required for the runway
rehabilitation project. Relative to the City of Port Angeles a grading permit and SEPA review will
be required due to the minor shoulder grading adjustments and electrical trenching.
Task 4 Work Items:
Runway Rehabilitation Project - SEPA and City Permitting Coordination:
It is assumed the Port of Port Angeles will be the SEPA Lead Agency. It is assumed the
grading permitting review will be undertaken with the City of Port Angeles. The following tasks
will be undertaken in support of these requirements.
4.1

Prepare SEPA checklist and assemble existing documentation to support SEPA package.
Documentation will be assembled from existing Port documents. No environmental studies
are included within this scope of work. If field investigations or environmental studies are
necessary to support the SEPA documentation, the effort for this will be included in a future
contract.

4.2

Prepare a City of Port Angeles clearing and grading Permit application and assembling
packet of applicable grading, stormwater, and pavement documents. Port to pay all
application fees and costs.

4.3

Coordinate City review of grading permitting submittal. This effort assumes up to 6 phone
review and 2 in-person coordination meetings with City personnel. The Project Manager will
attend the meetings.

4.4

Prepare Notice of Intent (NOI) for obtaining an NPDES Construction Stormwater General
Permit for the runway rehabilitation project. Port to coordinate publishing NOI advertisement
and pay advertising costs of NOI directly.

4.5

Prepare a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for the runway rehabilitation
project.
Primary Task 4 Deliverables:
• SEPA support documents
• Draft & Final City permit application and packet

TASK 5 – ELECTRICAL, LIGHTING, SIGNAGE, & NAVAIDs (RUNWAY)
Electrical design elements include revisions to airfield signage to match the new runway
designations as well as replacing runway edge lighting and signage system. Revisions to
NAVAIDs are not anticipated as runway grades will not change with a mill and overlay.
Task 5 Work Items:
5.1

Runway 100% Electrical Design (Elcon Associates, Inc.)
• Perform final on-site investigation to inform final design
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•

•
•
•
•

Progress the electrical design to 100%. Electrical components include replacing
runway lighting and signage circuit and new signage as needed to match new runway
designations. Final electrical design effort includes splitting MIRL system and
associated electrical work into an additive bid schedule to be awarded based on
available funding. Signage replacements and associated electrical work will remain in
the base bid.
100% Drawings (approx. 20 plan sheets)
100% Specifications
100% Cost Estimate
Final Electrical Design Report

5.2

Runway Electrical Bidding Support (Elcon Associates, Inc.)

5.3

Conduct QA/QC review of electrical subconsultant deliverables including:
• Runway 100% PS&E Deliverables

Primary Task 5 Deliverables:
• 100% Runway Electrical Plans, specification, and estimate
TASK 6 – 100% DESIGN (RUNWAY)
Task 6 Work Items:
6.1

Review Port and FAA 90% level review comments; address and respond to comments.

6.2

Coordinate with the FAA on potentially ineligible work and additive bid schedules for
ineligible work. Per preliminary discussions with the FAA, ineligible elements of work may
include:
• Runway lights and pavement markings beyond the displaced Runway 26 threshold
• Runway overlay transition zone to match existing beyond displaced Runway 26
threshold

6.3

The project manager and project engineer will make one site visit and inspection to inform
final design analysis and preparation.

6.4

Progress Design from 90% to 100%. Design elements include paving, grading, pavement
markings, electrical and other design components to 100% completion. Final design effort
includes splitting MIRL system into an additive bid schedule to be awarded based on
available funding.

6.5

Progress and prepare 100% level plans for runway overlay rehabilitation; 48 civil plan sheets
(plus additional sheets for runway sections) are anticipated. Anticipated plan sheets include:
•
•
•
•
•

Cover Sheet (1)
Project Overview and Survey Control Plan (1)
Site Safety and Phasing Plans (10)
Safety & Phasing Notes (1)
Demolition Plans (6)
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
6.6

Erosion Control Plans (3)
Erosion Control Notes and Details (1)
Runway 8-26 Overlay Plan/Profile (6)
Connecting Taxiway Plan/Profile (1)
Typical Paving Details (2)
Pavement Marking Plan (6)
Pavement Marking Details (3)
Edge Lighting and Signage Plan (7)

Progress and prepare 100% level bidding documents.
• Bidding documents will include bidding/contract specifications, general and special
provisions, technical provisions, and other related sections and forms.
•

Specifications will be developed using Advisory Circular 150/5370-10 (latest
edition), Standards for Specifying Construction of Airports and boilerplate front end
specifications provided by the Port.

6.7

Document Project Specific Specifications Adjustments, including justifications for each, per
FAA’s guidance on clarifications to specifications. Project Specific Specification
Adjustments will be included as an appendix in the Design Report. No Modifications (MOS)
of FAA Design or Construction Standards are anticipated for this project.

6.8

Prepare final Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP) and 7460, including addressing
previous Port and FAA review comments. Submit final CSPP & 7460 to FAA Seattle ADO
for review. 7460 will be prepared for temporary construction impacts. It is assumed a 7460
for the permanent condition is not needed. The final CSPP and 7460 will be uploaded to the
OE/AAA portal for review by all FAA offices.

6.9

Prepare final Design Report. The design report shall be prepared per FAA Regional
Guidance 620-04.

6.10 Prepare 100% level quantity and construction cost estimate for the runway overlay
rehabilitation project.
6.11 Compile 100% level submittal package and submit to the Port and FAA for review
electronically.
6.12 Conduct in-house QA/QC review of 100% submittal documents.
6.13 Consultant will lead 100% review meetings (via phone or web conference) with the Port and
FAA to review the 100% runway design – plans, specifications, project cost, final
CSPP/7460, and design report. Anticipate that three phone conference meetings will be
needed to review all 100% deliverables. The project manager and project engineer will
attend the meetings.
Primary Task 6 Deliverables:
• 100% level plan documents
• 100% level draft bidding documents (specifications)
• 100% level quantity and construction cost estimate
• Final Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP) & 7460s
• Final Design Report
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TASK 7 – BIDDING SERVICES
Task 7 Work Items:
7.1

Finalize documents from 100% comments, consolidate and prepare bid documents in
electronic pdf format, and upload to Quest CDN bid documents website.

7.2

Provide an advertisement for the public bidding of the project. The Port shall send the
Invitation to Bid to media outlets for advertisement, and pay advertising fee.

7.3

Provide project coordination with the Port and FAA throughout the bidding period.

7.4

Review, research, and prepare answers to technical questions during bidding.

7.5

Prepare addenda as necessary to clarify bid documents. Addenda will be distributed by the
Engineer. For scoping purposes this scope assumes three addenda will be prepared.
Addenda will be consolidated into one pdf electronic file and uploaded to the Quest CDN
website. (CWEC, Elcon)

7.6

Coordinate, attend, and facilitate a pre-bid conference for the project at the airport. Prepare
meeting agenda, sign-in sheet. The Project Manager will attend the pre-bid conference.

7.7

The Port will facilitate the bid opening and provide the Engineer with copies of all bid
packages received.

7.8

Prepare bid tabulation and prepare a Bid Analysis Letter to the Airport and FAA for award
of bid. It is assumed the Port will issue the Notice of Award letter.

7.9

Compile conformed plans and specifications to include addenda. Print six (6) hard copy sets
of conformed bid documents. Three (3) sets will be provided to the Port, and three (3) sets
will be retained for the consultants use. Conformed documents will be provided to the FAA
in PDF format.

Primary Task 7 Deliverables:
• PDF bid documents for upload to Quest CDN website
• Bid tabulation/Bid Analysis Letter
• Recommendation of Award Letter
ASSUMPTIONS/EXCLUSIONS
1. Runway SEPA documentation will be assembled from existing Port documents. No
environmental studies are included within this scope of work. If field investigations or
environmental studies are necessary to support the Runway SEPA documentation, the effort
for this will be included in a future contract.
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2. Updates to the ALP are not included in this scope of work. ALP updates as needed following
construction will be covered under a future contract for construction administration.
3. No surface and subsurface drainage improvements are included within the scope of the
runway rehabilitation project, and drainage design is not included in this scope of work.
4. The Port shall send the NOI and the invitation to bid to media outlets for advertisement and
pay advertising fees directly.

PROJECT SCHEDULE
The general anticipated project schedule is as follows:
• Spring 2021 – Runway Phase 2 Final Design
• Summer 2021 – Runway Bid
• Summer 2022 – Runway Construction
A detailed project schedule will be developed as part of Task 1 per this scope of work.
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WORK SESSION ITEM FOR DISCUSSION
BY THE
BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS
April 13, 2021
SUBJECT:

Draft Policy for Benefits for Non-Represented Part-Time Staff

STAFF LEAD:

Karen Goschen, Executive Director

RCW & POLICY REQUIREMENTS:
Per RCW 53.08.170 Employment – Wages – Benefits – Agents – Insurance, for port district
commissioners, the port commission shall have authority to create and fill positions, to fix
wages, salaries and bonds. Per RCW 53.57.030 Governance – Organization – Management
Authority, the affairs, operations, and funds of a port development authority are governed
exclusively through the elected port commission.
Per the Delegation of Authority Resolution No. 20-1216 the Executive Director shall be
responsible the administration of the day-to-day operations which include personnel
administration (administration of the employee salary schedule and incentive programs,
benefits, task and project assignments, hiring, firing, training, grievance procedures,
employee enrichment and improvement, etc.).
The current Employee Handbook only addressed benefits for part-time staff as required by
law or by program plans, such as Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) under
Department of Retirement Systems (DRS) and Public Employee Benefits Board (PEBB)
program under the Health Care Authority (HCA). Port resolutions and policies dealing with
employee benefits have not clearly defined the term “eligible” for benefits.
BACKGROUND:
The Port typically has not had regularly scheduled part-time staff. The Port has irregularly
scheduled part-time security staff that are called in as needed and work less than 70
hours/mo. In 2021, there are two management positions that will be moving from full-time to a
regularly scheduled part-time. Mike Nimmo will be moving from his Maritime Business
Development position to a part-time Maritime position and Karen Goschen will be moving
from her Executive Director position to a part-time Project position.
Staff completed research on Port benefits and determined which benefits are required by law,
are part of a labor agreement or are provided per Port policy. An internal spreadsheet has
been developed to categorize benefits for non-represented and represented staff, full-time
and part-time, exempt and non-exempt, temporary and seasonal employees.
At the Commission meeting on March 23, 2021 staff presented benefits offered by the Port
and asked for Commission direction on what benefits to provide to non-represented part-time
or temporary staff and the eligibility criteria.
ANALYSIS:
Based on discussion at the Commission meeting, staff developed the attached draft policy
which incorporates the following key factors:
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Identifies part-time benefits for regularly scheduled non-represented staff.
Represented staff is governed by collective bargaining agreements.
General eligibility for benefits is a regularly scheduled employee working at least halftime (20 hours per week) and anticipated to work at least six months if it is a temporary
position.
Health Care insurance premiums will be paid by the Port for the employee and family
as long as the Port continues to be grandfathered into the low composite premium rate
structure.
Paid time off benefits would be prorated based on full-time equivalent (FTE).
Additional life insurance and long-term disability will be provided if the plan will accept
coverage for part-time positions.
The Port is willing to administer a VEBA plan for employee only contributions.
The effective date for most benefits will be immediately upon hire unless the benefit
plan has other requirements (health and retirement plan is the 1st calendar day of the
month following the employee’s date of hire).

Attachment:
1. DRAFT Benefits for Non-Represented Part-Time Employees
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT:
None
FISCAL IMPACT:
Based on 2021 budget, total benefits divided by total salaries was 29.7%. Benefits include:
FICA (payroll taxes), L&I (labor & industries or workers compensation), FML (family medical
leave), health care (medical, vision, dental), LTD (long term disability), life insurance, and
retirement. In addition to these premiums, and not included in the 29.7%, are vacation,
holiday and sick days and other paid time off (bereavement, administrative, jury duty, witness
duty, and military drills/training).
The fiscal impact of providing benefits for part-time staff will depend on how many hours parttime employees work.
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Discuss the draft policy and provide additional direction.
Next step is for staff to draft a resolution adopting the policy.
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Policy & Procedure: Benefits for Part-Time
Employees
Approval Required (check box)
☒ Commissioners (Policy)
☒ Executive Director
☒ Director

Approved By:
__________________________________
Karen Goschen, Executive Director
__________________________________
Director

I.

Approval Reference
(if applicable)
Res 21-1234
Motion on April 27,
2021
Effective Date:
May 1, 2021

PURPOSE
The purpose of this policy is to provide a framework to create, modify and maintain
appropriate compensation and benefits programs with adequate supervision and
control. The policy is designed to attract, motivate and retain engaged employees
that are critical to achieving the Port’s strategic goals. The Port’s compensation
philosophy is to be aligned with the middle of the external market, support internal
equity, and are based on overall performance of the Port and of individual
employees.
Scope: This policy applies to eligible non-represented employees that are
regularly scheduled to work part-time and eligible non-represented temporary
employees. For represented employees, see collective bargaining agreements.
Note: This initial policy covers benefits for non-represented part-time employees.
At a later time, this policy will be expanded into an overall Compensation and
Benefits Policy. Therefore, this policy format has information that will also be
relevant in an overall Compensation and Benefits Policy.

II.

POLICY (Per Resolution 21-1234)
The Port will provide health care, retirement, paid time-off, and other benefits to
eligible non-represented regularly scheduled part-time employees and eligible
non-represented temporary employees.
Eligibility Criteria:
1. Regularly Scheduled Part-Time – An employee who is regularly scheduled to
work at least 20 hours (half-time) or more per week will be generally eligible for
benefits.

Benefits-Part-Time Policy-DRAFT.docx
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Policy & Procedure: Benefits for Part-Time
Employees
2. Temporary Employee – An employee who is in a full-time or regularly
scheduled half-time position or more that is expected to last at least six months
will be generally eligible for benefits.
3. Plan Eligibility – The Port will provide benefits based on the eligibility criteria of
the Port’s current Health Care and Retirement benefit plans even if they are
more generous than the general criteria for benefits. For example:
a.

PEBB Health Care Benefits: 80 hours/month for more than six
consecutive months, which is .46 FTE at 18.5 hours/week. (FTE is fulltime equivalent.)

b.

Retirement Benefits: 70 hours/month in any 5 months in a 12-month
period for two consecutive years, which is .40 FTE at 16.2 hours/week.

Benefits:
1. Health Care Benefits – The Port participates in the Public Employee Benefits
Board (PEBB) program under the Health Care Authority (HCA). The Port is
grandfathered in at a composite rate structure that is lower than today’s tiered
rates.
a.

At this time the Port is willing to pass on savings of the composite
rate structure to employees by not requiring an employee cost share
for the employee or family members.

b.

The Commission can change the cost share structure for employee
and family premiums at any time by adopting a new resolution.

2. Retirement Benefits – The Port participates in the Public Employee Retirement
System (PERS) under Department of Retirement Systems (DRS). The
employer and employee contribution is set by DRS.
a.

Deferred Compensation – The Port administers this program on
behalf of employees that are eligible under PERS. This allows
employees to withhold a portion of their salary which is invested for
payment at a later date. Employees may elect pre-tax and/or posttax deferrals.

3. Paid Time-Off Benefits – The Port provides several types of paid time-off
benefits.
a.

These benefits will be pro-rated based on a full-time equivalent
(FTE).
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Policy & Procedure: Benefits for Part-Time
Employees
b.

For example, an employee that regularly works 20 hours per week
would be .5 FTE and would receive 50% of the paid time-off benefits.
Paid time-off benefits include: vacation, holidays, floating holidays,
sick, bereavement, jury duty, witness duty.

4. Additional Life Insurance – The Port provides additional coverage in the amount
of one times the employee’s base salary unless otherwise limited by the plan
document.
5. Long-Term Disability Insurance – The Port provides additional coverage in the
amount of 60% of the employee’s salary unless otherwise limited by the plan
document.
6. VEBA (Voluntary Employees Beneficiary Association) Plan – The Port
administers a VEBA plan on behalf of employees. The Port does not contribute
to this plan. VEBA is a tax-free health reimbursement account. The plan
reimburses eligible out-of-pocket health care costs incurred by eligible
participants. This program is separate from the Port’s health plan program.
Other:
1. Effective Date – The effective date for benefits is to start immediately, unless
otherwise provided for in the particular benefit plan.
a.

For health care and retirement benefits it is typically the first calendar
day of the month, following an employee’s date of hire. If an
employee starts on the 1st of the month then benefits start that day.

b.

For paid time off benefits, the employee will start accruing benefits
immediately. For floating holidays, it is prorated based on the number
of months anticipated to be worked in the year and is available
immediately.

2. Termination Date – The termination date for benefits is the date the employee
terminates employment, unless otherwise provided for in the benefits plan
document. Health care benefits typically continue through the end of the month.
3. Plan Changes – The Executive Director is authorized to amend benefits as
necessary to comply with plan changes. The Executive Director will notify the
Commission of such changes.
4. Statutory Changes – The Executive Director is authorized to amend benefits
as necessary to comply with any changes in statutory requirements. The
Executive Director will notify the Commission of such changes.
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III.

PROCEDURE
1. Personnel Change Form – Authorization for a new hire or termination shall be
approved by the HR Department and the Executive Director.
2. New Hire / Termination Checklist – Various forms are required to be completed
in the new hire or termination process. The forms shall contain the information
necessary to initiate or terminate benefits. The HR Department works with the
employee to complete the appropriate documentation in a timely manner.
3. Accounting (Payroll) – The HR Department provides the necessary
documentation to Accounting (Payroll).

IV.

CONTROL
1. Insurance Benefits Billing – Accounting receives monthly billings for benefit
expenses which are reconciled to the payroll accounting system. In addition,
all benefit payments are reviewed by the Auditor or Deputy Auditor prior to
issuing payment. Any discrepancies are reviewed by HR.
2. Vacation and Sick time accruals – Payroll maintains leave logs that are
separate from the payroll system which are reconciled on a monthly basis to
ensure the correct amount of leave has been granted.
3. Changes in Law – The HR Department and Legal monitors changes to laws
and regulations that could affect the benefits provided.
4. Annual Budget Process – Trend analysis and anticipated changes in the cost
of benefits is reviewed annually as part of the budget development process.
a.

V.

If costs increase significantly, then staff will review eligibility rules that
avoid including retirees, dependents, and spouses who are otherwise
insured.

DEFINITIONS & KEY TERMS
1. Employment Status: An employee is anyone who performs personal services
for the Port and receives a paycheck from the Port payroll system with
employment taxes withheld. The following categories of employees are used
for purposes of compensation and benefits:
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a. Regular Full-Time: An employee who is regularly scheduled to work 40
hours per week, and excluding limited duration, temporary, on-call,
relief and terminal security positions.
b. Regular Part-Time: An employee who is regularly scheduled to work at
least 20 hours per week, and excluding limited duration, temporary, oncall, relief and terminal security positions.
c. On-Call Employee: An employee who is in an on-call position with no
guarantee of work.
d. Temporary Full-Time: An employee who is regularly scheduled to work
40 hours per week in a position anticipated to last one to two years.
The position may be an interim replacement or supplement the
workforce or assist with a special project.
e. Temporary Part-Time: An employee who is regularly scheduled to
work at least 20 hours per week in a position anticipated to last one to
two years. The position may be an interim replacement or supplement
the workforce or assist with a special project.
f. Seasonal Employee: An employee who is anticipated to return on a
recurring basis each year doing similar work in a position that is
expected to last less than six months.
NOTE: Each Benefit Plan may have its own definition of the above terms.
2. Dependent Eligibility: The requirements for dependent eligibility will vary
based on the benefit plan documents.
3. Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA): All Port positions are designated as either
"exempt" or "non-exempt" according to FLSA and Washington Minimum
Wage Act regulations. An employee’s non-exempt or exempt classification
may be changed only upon written notification by the Port of Port Angeles
management.
a. Non-exempt employees are entitled to overtime pay under the specific
provisions of Federal and State laws.
b. Exempt employees are excluded from earning overtime pay per
specific provisions of Federal and State wage and hour laws.
4. Labor Relations Status:
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a. Non-represented: An employee in an exempt or nonexempt position
who is not represented by a collective bargaining unit.
b. Represented: An employee in a nonexempt position who is
represented by a collective bargaining agreement.
VI.

REFERENCES
1.

Port Resolution No. 13 - 1065 – Compensation Policy

2.

RCW 53.08.170 Employment – Wages – Benefits – Agents – Insurance for
port district commissioners. The port commission shall have authority to
create and fill positions, to fix wages, salaries and bonds.

3.

RCW 53.57.030 Governance – Organization – Management authority. The
affairs, operations, and funds of a port development authority are governed
exclusively through the elected port commission.

Benefits-Part-Time Policy-DRAFT.docx

Page 6 of 6
92

ITEM FOR CONSIDERATION
BY THE
BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS
April 13, 2021
SUBJECT:

DELETION OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM RECORDS

Presented by:

John Nutter, Deputy Executive Director

BACKGROUND:
One of the steps in closing the Port’s financial records for 2020 is an assessment of
collectability of overdue accounts. The purpose of this step is to fairly present accounts
receivable assets on our financial statements according to GASB (Governmental
Accounting Standards Board). Removal of accounts from our records requires
Commission action.
ANALYSIS:
We have identified two (2) accounts with outstanding balances totaling $54,711.84
which should be removed from our accounts receivable asset listing. Removal of these
accounts from our records does not mean that the Port is forgiving these debts. We will
continue to pursue collection by all practical means. The Port proactively manages our
receivables in order to deal with delinquent accounts in a timely manner.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

2014 - $23,112.76 (0.23% of operating revenue)
2015 - $11,089.21 (0.13% of operating revenue)
2016 - $9,406.13 (0.10% of operating revenue)
2017 - $5,029.03 (0.04% of operating revenue)
2018 - $7,905.45 (0.07% of operating revenue)
2019 - $8,165.95 (0.09% of operating revenue)
2020 - $54,711.84 (0.58% of operating revenue)

2020 Port of Port Angeles Uncollectable Accounts
Dept

Customer

Amount

Comment

JWM

Drew Sumrow

$3,451.21

Sent to collections

PABH

Bruce Alexander

$51,398.95

Sent to collections, legal review in process

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT:
None.

93

FISCAL IMPACT:
Assets and net earnings of the Port for 2020 will decrease by approximately $54,711.84.
The breakdown of affected account is as follows:

Salvage Recovery Fee
PABH Moorage Fees
PABH Electrical Fees
JWM Moorage Fees
JWM Electrial Fees
JWM Dock Box Fees
Finance Charges
Late Fees
Ins Non Comply Fee

Alexander
34,420.52
8,083.35
138.32
8,206.76
550.00
51,398.95

Sumrow
-

Total
34,420.52
8,083.35

2,717.00
110.00
55.00
144.21
350.00
75.00
3,451.21

2,717.00
110.00
55.00
8,350.97
900.00
75.00
54,711.84

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Commission approves removal of the listed accounts from our records.
continue with collection efforts.

Staff will
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Future Agenda Items –Commission Meeting
4/13/21 Regular Commission Meeting

April 26, 2021 (Special Joint Commission Meeting with the County @ County)
• Broadband Update
• Western World Development Center Area Sector Analysis Process
• CIE, SBDC, EDC, NODC - Updates

April 27, 2021 (Regular Commission Meeting)
• Investment Report
• Quarterly Report (1st)
• Acceptance of FIA AIP 39 Grant – Final Runway Design
May 11, 2021 (Regular Commission Meeting)

May 25, 2021 (Regular Commission Meeting)

Upcoming Events/Announcements
• WPPA Virtual Spring Meeting – May 19-21, 2021
• AFRC Annual Meeting – August 2-4, 2021 – Skamania Lodge
• Washington Airport Management Assoc. Conference – October 4-6, 2021 – Alderbrook
• Olympic Logging Conference –April 27-29, 2022 – Victoria, B.C.
Future
• Petrocard – Update in Future
• Governance: Employee Handbook and Resolutions
• Port Emergency Response Plans and Activities
• Employee Handbook Update
• Acrobatic Practice Box Update
Future Joint Meetings
• 2021 Joint Meetings with Clallam County
o April 26, 2021 at the Port from 11:00 to 2:00pm
o October 25, 2021 at the County from 11:00 to 2:00pm
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